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Financial Highlights
B

Major Financial Indicators

FERMBIRE R R

For the year ended 31st March
HE=-A=T—HBItFE

and Ratios

Operating results REXE
Revenue Wz

Gross profit EMN
Operating profit R

Net Profit HE A

Per share data sREH
Earnings per share BN
Total dividend per share B S
Net assets per share BREEFE
Financial position Bk
Total assets BEBE

Net assets BESE
Financial ratio B i b &
Current ratio (Times) MBI (15)
Quick ratio (Times) RENLE ()
Gross margin (%) FEFZE(%)

Net gearing ratio (%)

FEERBR(%)

Turnover ratio Aty R
Inventory turnover FERE
Debtors turnover U BR A
Creditors turnover FEf AR iR EE
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18,213
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HK cents
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FTERT

337,756
181,580

% changes

2015 increase (decrease)
—T—hF AN EE
HK$'000 #Cr)
FET
695,057 (1.5)
148,603 10.6
19,840 (8.2)
11,781 (13.8)
HK cents %
Bl
39 (51.3)
1.0 -
90.9 (0.1)
HK$'000 %
T
357,919 (5.6)
181,865 (0.2)
1.9 53
0.7 143
21.4% 2.6%
26.4% 7.1%
Days %
H
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32 -
33 -
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Financial Highlights
B

For the year ended 31st March == A =+—HILFE
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Revenue by Business Segments (by %)
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CEQO’s Statement
TR

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31st March 2016, the Group recorded a
turnover of around HK$684 million, representing a decrease of about 1.6%
from approximately HK$695 million recorded in the last year. Gross profit
increased by about 10% from approximately HK$149 million in the last year
to around HK$164 million in this year, while the gross profit margin slightly
increased by approximately 2.6% to around 24.0% from about 21.4% in
the last year. The Group’s operating profit decreased by around 10% to
approximately HK$18 million (31st March 2015: approximately HK$20
million), and the profit attributable to shareholders was approximately
HK$3.8 million (31st March 2015: approximately HK$7.8 million). This
represented earnings per share of around HK$0.019 (about HK$0.039 as
at 31st March 2015). The Board has resolved that subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, a final dividend of HKO0.5 cent per ordinary share shall be
declared for the year ended 31st March 2016, totaling HK$1 million to the
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on 15th August 2016. The final dividend, if approved, is expected
to be paid on 25th August 2016.

During the year under review, the Group continued to focus on its three
core business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic
components, automation parts and equipment under the brand of mesieon
(the “Electronic Trading Business”); and (2) the Computer Business which
includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and smartphone
accessories under the brand of E3VideoCom (the “Computer Retail
Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer products and consumer
products under the brand of ni@ (the “Computer Distribution Business”);
and (3) the Cosmetic Retail Business under the brand of W'Shh' During
the year under review, the Group's turnover derived from the Electronic
Trading Business decreased approximately 9% to about HK$405 million
from approximately HK$445 million in the last year. Turnover from the
Computer Business was recorded as about HK$108 million, which
represented a decrease of approximately 23.4% from about HK$141
million in the last year. Turnover from Cosmetic Retail Business reflected
notable improvement in turnover and recorded HK$171 million, which
represented an increase of approximately 56.9% from about HK$109
million in the last year.
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CEQO’s Statement
TR R

For the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group's total operating
expenses were approximately HK$148 million, representing an increase
of about 13% (31st March 2015: about HK$131 million), among which the
distribution and selling expenses were approximately HK$50 million which
have increased by 8.7% from HK$46 million recorded in the last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase of sales related costs as
a result of an increase in commission and salary paid to cosmetic retail
salesladies. During the year under review, the general and administrative
expenses increased by about 15.3% to around HK$98 million (31st March
2015: about HK$85 million). While the Group continued to control the
headcount in the Electronic Trading Business and the Computer Business,
the Group allocated more resources to the Cosmetic Retail Business. As
at 31st March 2016, the headcount for the Electronic Trading Business
and the Computer Business decreased by about 3% and 17% to 307 and
54 fulltime employees (31st March 2015: 318 and 65 fulltime employees)
respectively while the headcount for the Cosmetic Retail Business
increased from 76 full-time employees last year by about 20% to 91 full-
time employees as a result of the increase of the cosmetic retail stores.
Meanwhile, finance cost for the year under review increased by about
26.3% to approximately HK$2.4 million (31st March 2015: about HK$1.9
million).

During the year under review, the Group expanded up to 38 cosmetic retail
stores. By means of the Group’s commitment on the development of the
cosmetic retail networks, the Cosmetic Retail Business posted turnover
growth with strong momentum and became one of the Group's core
business operations.
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CEQO’s Statement
TR

Development Strategy and Outlook

Over the year under review, there were several notable transitions in
the global economy including low level of commodity prices, slowdown
of China’s economy as a result of a structural change from investment
activities towards domestic consumption and a relatively strong US Dollar
against other currencies. Growth is moderate in advanced economies
whilst many of the emerging countries are stuck in low growth era.

Retail sales slump in Hong Kong continued its trend in 2015. Rent and
prices are set to fall further as retail sales declined. The outlook for the
retail sector is weak as a result of falling tourist arrival, mainly those from
Mainland China due to the adverse impact of the “one-visit-one-week”
policy implemented by the Central Government of China. However, the
domestic demand remained resilient supported by factors such as steady
inflation and low unemployment rate.

Notwithstanding the downward retail sales trend, the Group continues
to record promising results in its Cosmetic Retail Business and reflected
approximately 57% sales growth as compared with that of as recorded in
2015. The Group is optimistic about the future tourist spending in view of
the growing numbers of Mainland residents visiting Hong Kong in recent
years. Mainland tourists and local residents will remain as the prime target
of the Group. The Group also expects to open five more cosmetic retail
shops primarily in tourist districts such as Causeway Bay, Mong Kok and
Tsim Sha Tsui.

With regard to the Electronic Trading Business, the Group will allocate
more resources for the development of lighting products and RF module
for toys application to expand its market shares in China and Hong Kong.
In addition, the Group expects to expand several product lines including
LED dimming Modules, Bluetooth Modules and WiFi Modules. In addition,
the Group will cautiously develop its Electronic Trading Business and
participate in reputable industry exhibitions. Through these events, the
Group will maintain close relationship with vendors and explore new
business opportunities as well as to gain insights on industrial trends
and new products. During the year under review, the Group has also
utilised various social media platform to promote its new products and the
outcome is satisfactory.

For the Computer Business, the Group will develop marketing strategies
to increase its market presence through channels such as social media
network. The Group will also increase product variety to satisfy the needs
of different customer groups. Furthermore, the Group also expects to
introduce several models of computer and mobile accessories and develop
lighting industry.
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CEQO’s Statement
TR R

Appreciation ot

I would like to thank our management team and all our staff members AAZLBH AT EREL L EETEE—FH
for their effort and significant contribution to the Group during the past 2 H R AREBIEENEAEEL I 0 RATR
year. In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our ~ FRORKHALE - WEREE - BF A% RTR
shareholders, institutional investors, customers, bankers and business — ALY AN E B — B LAKA) L ER{SHE -
partners for their continuous support to and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board AEEEGH

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BT EFRITBARE

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer B8E

Hong Kong, 23rd June 2016 B —E-XEXAZT=H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

T PR i B

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group operated three core business
operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components,
automation parts and equipment under the brand of mesiesx (the “Electronic
Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the retail
sales of computer products and smartphone accessories under the brand
of m“ﬂ}fg@ﬂ (the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of

“Computer Distribution Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic Retail Business
under the brand of W'Shh' The Electronic Trading Business, the Computer
Business and the Cosmetic Retail Business accounted for approximately
59%, 16% and 25% of the Group’s total turnover respectively for the year
under review.

By analysis on the three core business operations, the gross profit margin
of the Electronic Trading Business, the Computer Business and the
Cosmetic Retail Business were approximately 20.4%, 19.1% and 35.7%
(31st March 2015: approximately 19.6%, 17.4% and 34.0%) respectively
for the year ended 31st March 2016.

Electronic Trading Business

Hong Kong

Electronic Trading Business remained the primary contributor to the
Group’s turnover and profits during the year under review and showed
steady turnover of approximately HK$405 million as compared with that of
approximately HK$445 million recorded in the last year or dropped by about
9%.

During the year under review, purchasing managers worldwide tended
to favour more conservative approach and resulted in lower purchasing
power as evidenced by benchmark indexes. The call for quantitative easing
has been growing especially loud in the past few months in the Eurozone
mainly due to signs of deflation. Whilst there was no significant change
in the profitability measures of the Group's electronic products, its sales
growth was constrained by weakening of the Eurozone demand, offsetting
its steady results in the Asia-Pacific and US markets. In addition, the Group
has shifted its prime focus from low margin customer groups and seeking
for other potential targets.

Overseas

The aggregate turnover of all of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries was
approximately HK$109 million, representing an overall decrease of
approximately 8.4% as compared with that of approximately HK$119
million recorded in the last year.

EREEEERAR - ZF—REER

3% ol @

EEBER  AEEESSAROEE - B (1)
S\ MSBEW 5 © 8 ) T T - £ B (L AR AR R
SHEB(BFEELR])  QBIMER - &b
o $(i) A LA VideoCom 5, o pom vy 28 i e 12, % 9 B F 1
RuTers((BrTess ) &in 22 s
RIENERERREBER S HEB(ERH W
25 ))  REWshh oy posey
% REEEE EFEELE  EREBRL
0 T 5 Rl A S L 400 A B 49 59% -
16% £225% °

WAREER=RZOLEBIT  REBEEZT - F
A=+ HBLFE ETEEER THE
BRI M T EEB 2 EFED R4 H20.4%
191% &3BI% (ZE—HF=ZA=+—"H : 4
19.6%  17.4%%234.0%) °

B HERE

il

ROREFE  ETEEEBNE AT EEELE
REFZEEBRE  BEEER  BONET
REEBT  BREFENNFENTEASSETT
FE479% °

RIBEAREEEHER  ROBEFE  2HRE
IR EREUBSH R THORES - ABBE N TR -
ERBAERES  BEBRABRTREZRECRERN
BERER BEAKEZETERNBERE
HREBREE  EHEEERMREEITRAKS
FRIER - BT EAETAREETS 2 FIBR
B BRI - AEEREENBEOES  BM
SREMBEREEP

b

REOBEE AEEMREEBINEBRARZAE
BEBHOR—BTNEBEL  BEFED
—E-ThABREE TR THKABA% -

1



Management Discussion and Analysis

T PR i M

South African Rand slumped against strong Hong Kong dollar by about
20% as compared with that of quoted in the last year and faced further
downside pressure. Market expectations on higher federal benchmark
rates are burdening the currencies in developing economies. During the
year under review, the turnover generated by the Group’s South Africa
subsidiary slightly decreased by 2.4% and reached approximately HK$82
million during the year under review (31st March 2015: approximately
HK$84 million).

Meanwhile, the Group’s Singapore and Malaysia subsidiaries entered into
agreements with Oki Sensor Device Corporation and Testo SMI Sdn Bhd
during the year under review and became an authorized distributor of reed
switches for industrial application and portable measuring environmental
instruments and systems respectively. Such agreements allowed the Group
to diversify its products and gain further market share in the electronic
equipment business.

In terms of geographical segments, the turnover from Hong Kong, the
Asia Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and
other regions accounted for approximately 67%, 18%, 12%, 1% and 2%
respectively of the Group's total turnover during the year under review.

Computer Business

Computer Retail Business

The turnover of the Computer Retail Business dropped to approximately
HK$27 million by about 31% during the year under review (31st March
2015: approximately HK$39 million). During the year under review, the
Group has closed down 2 retail stores as a means to implement its cost
saving measures. The Group also attempts to diversify its businesses
by selling toys in addition to its traditional businesses. The Group has
planned to achieve these goals through online marketing channels such as
Facebook.

Computer Distribution Business

The turnover of the Computer Distribution Business recorded a decline
of about 21% to approximately HK$81 million (31st March 2015 of
approximately HK$102 million). Despite the slump in revenue, there was
improvement in gross profit margin of which stood at 9% during the year
under review. This growth momentum and improvement were attributable
to the introduction of various new computer and mobile accessories such
as mobile battery charger.
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Cosmetic Retail Business

The negative impact of the “one-visit-one-week” policy implemented by
the Central Government of China was evidenced by the plunge in growth
number of Mainland visitors during the year under review. The number of
high-spending overnight visitors even declined further and hence overall
spending had decreased to a great extent. Regardless of the above,
the Group’s Cosmetic Retail Business remained solid and reflected a
significant growth of 57% in terms of turnover as compared with that
of recorded in the last year and accounted for 25% of the consolidated
revenue of the Group. The Group has adopted a market-driven and
customer-focused approach in expanding its retail store chain network and
formulating its product selling strategies.

As at 31st March 2016, Videocom Technology (HK) Limited (“Videocom”)
has expanded up to 38 wishh! retail stores (as at 31st March 2015:
27 Wlshh' stores). Over the past year, the Group devoted considerable
resources with multiple social media channels such as Facebook, Weibo
and WeChat to maintain sales growth and build up the brand image to
attract awareness from potential customers.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st March 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$40 million and the net current assets were
approximately HK$161 million. As at 31st March 2016, the current ratio
increased to approximately 2.0 (as at 31st March 2015: approximately 1.9).
Out of the Group's cash and bank balances, about 40% and 21% were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars respectively.
The balance of approximately 23%, 9%, 4%, 1%, 1% and 1% of its total
cash and bank balances was denominated in Renminbi, South African
Rand, Malaysia Ringgit, New Taiwan dollars and Singaporean dollar and
others respectively. The Group’s total assets amounted to approximately
HK$338 million (as at 31st March 2015: approximately HK$358 million).
Net assets per share amounted to approximately HK$0.91 (as at 31st
March 2015: approximately HK$0.91). Dividend and basic earnings per
share were approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.019 respectively (as at 31st
March 2015: approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.039 respectively).
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The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. As at
31st March 2016, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts, loans
and trade finance from banks totaling approximately HK$157 million (as at
31st March 2015: approximately HK$119 million), with an unused balance
of approximately HK$56 million (as at 31st March 2015: approximately
HK$26 million). The Directors believe that the Group’s existing financial
resources are sufficient to fulfill its current commitments and working
capital requirements.

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2016, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$101 million (as at 31st March 2015: HK$93 million),
which were in the form of short-term bank loans (including short-term
loans and trade finance) for financing the daily business operations and
future development plans. The majority of Group’s bank borrowings as at
31st March 2016 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. These short-
term loans and trade finance were secured by the Company’s corporate
guarantees of around HK$164 million and the leasehold properties in
Singapore (as at 31st March 2015: HK$132 million), with a maturity
term of one to four months, and such short-term loans can be rolled over
afterwards at the Group’s discretion.

During the year under review, the Group’s borrowings bore interest at rates
ranging from 1.88% to 3.46% per annum (as at 31st March 2015: ranging
from 2.21% to 3.06% per annum).

Gearing ratio

As at 31st March 2016, the Group's gross borrowing repayable within one
year, amounted to approximately HK$101 million (as at 31st March 2015:
approximately HK$93 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$40 million, the Group's net borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$61 million (as at 31st March 2015: approximately
HK$48 million). The total equity as at 31st March 2016 was approximately
HK$182 million (as at 31st March 2015: approximately HK$182 million).
Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio, based on net borrowings to
total equity, increased to 33.5% (as at 31st March 2015: 26.4%). The
increase of net gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase of bank
borrowings in relation to the increase of working capital required to
support the development for the Cosmetic Retail Business.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

Most of the Group's transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and United States dollars. Given that the exchange rate of Hong
Kong dollars against Renminbi has been and is likely to be under control
and that Hong Kong Government’s policy of pegging the Hong Kong dollars
to the United States dollars remains in effect, the Directors consider that
the risk facing by the Group on foreign exchange will remain minimal and
no hedging or other alternative measures have been undertaken by the
Group. As at 31st March 2016, the Group had no significant risk exposure
pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest rates, currency swaps, or
other financial derivatives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2016, the properties with carrying value of approximately
HK$11 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group's subsidiary in Singapore.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March 2016, the Group had total outstanding operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$53 million (as at 31st March 2015:
HK$74 million). In view of the Group's high level of liquid funds, it is
expected that the Group will be able to fulfill all these commitments
without any difficulty. The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st
March 2016.

Employment, Training and Remuneration Policy

As at 31st March 2016, the Group had a total of 452 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on the
performance, merits and market conditions. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other
staff benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance
coverage and performance-based bonuses (based on the Group's financial
results as well as individual performance).
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Social Responsibilities

The Group is committed to contributing to the community, and it fosters
a corporate team spirit by encouraging staff to take part in various
charitable activities to help the people in need. During the year, the
Group participated in the Yan Chai Charity Walk organized by Yan Chai
Hospital and the Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Donation Day. The Group also
continued to organize a representative team to join the OQutward Bound
Competition which raises funds for Qutward Bound Hong Kong.

The Group is keen on contributing the society, nurturing the next
generation and protecting the environment. The Group has continuously
employed full-time employees with impaired hearing, and their ability
has been proved in workplace. The Group has also provided placement
opportunities to local tertiary institutions. The Group was awarded the
Caring Company Logo for 10 Consecutive Years by the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service in recognition of our achievements in corporate social
responsibility in “Giving”, “Employing the Vulnerable”, “Caring for the
Employees” and “Caring for the Environment”. In addition, the Group
also awarded by the Class of Good Wastewi$e Label of the Hong Kong
Awards for Environmental Excellence (HKAEE), Happy Company from
Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification from Environmental Protection Department.
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Executive Directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 55, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Chairman of the Company
(“Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung
has more than 35 years of experience in the electronics industry, and is
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and corporate policies.
He is keen on nurturing the second generation to strengthen the overall
corporate management.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (“"HKEIA") and
was nominated as Vice-chairman of the HKEIA (2011-2015). He has served
as Vice President of CEQ Club (2009-2014).

He was appointed by the City University of Hong Kong as Honorary
Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the Industry Co-operative
Education Centre, and served as a member of the Electronics and
Telecommunications Training Board (2013-2017) and Information
Technology Training and Development (2015-2017) of Vocational Training
Council. He also serves as the School Manager of De La Salle Secondary
School, NT (2005-2016).

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 54, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (“Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company. With
more than 35 years of experience in the electronics industry, Ms. Yeung is
responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and internal control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing
and new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In
2006, Ms. Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration
from Lincoln University.

In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor
in the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong
(2014-2015) and Advisory Committee (2010—-2014) of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Electronics / Electrical Appliances Industries. She is
the wife of the Chairman, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.
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Hung Ying Fung,

aged 52, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and both the computer and cosmetic
retail business development of the Group and has over 30 years of
experience in the electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the
director of the Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited.
Mr. Hung was nominated as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po
District Commerce & Industrial Liaison Committee (2014-2016) and the
CLP Local Customer Advisory Committee of Sham Shui Po District Tenure of
Office (2014-2016). He is the brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 53, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development
of the retail business in PRC and Asia Pacific region of the Group. He has
over 32 years of experience in the electronics and computer industry. He is
the brother of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl.

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho,

aged 58, Executive Director

has been an executive director of the Company from June 2013 to 31st
March 2016. Despite his resignation as an executive director of the
Company, he is the director of five subsidiaries of the Company, namely
AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited,
Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited (“Mantech Electronics”),
Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.
Mr. Moutinho has been appointed as an advisor to the Portuguese diaspora
by Portuguese World Council since February 2014.

During his directorship of the Company, Mr. Moutinho was responsible
for the business operations of the Group in South Africa. He joined the
Group in December 2001 when Mantech Electronics was acquired by the
Group and became an executive director of the Company in June 2013.
Mr. Moutinho obtained his national certificate in Electronics from the
University of Johannesburg (formerly known as Technikon Witwatersrand)
in 1982 and matriculated at the Johannesburg Technical College in South
Africa in 1977. He is a qualified electrical technician engineer.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Charles E. Chapman,

aged 67, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the independent non-executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 595) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and a senior industry consultant for a number of overseas-based trade fair
organizers. He was executive director of Hong Kong Electronic Industries
Association Limited ("HKEIA") and managing director of the HKEIA's
subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd.
from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired. Prior to joining HKEIA, Mr.
Chapman worked for 12 years as economics editor at the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and for 8 years as business editor in a local English-
language newspaper.

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 51, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Dr. Leung
is a qualified accountant and chartered secretary with over 27 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He
graduated from Curtin University with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree
majoring in accounting and subsequently obtained a postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration, a Master degree of Professional Accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Doctor degree of Philosophy
in Management from the Empresarial University of Costa Rica and a Doctor
degree of Education in Educational Management from Bulacan State
University. He is an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, the Hong Kong Institute Secretaries and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Dr. Leung is also a visiting lecturer of the
Hong Kong University (SPACE).
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Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 60, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the principal of De La Salle Secondary School, NT in Hong Kong. He
obtained an Honorary Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and a Diploma
in Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979 and 1985
respectively. He has served in De La Salle Secondary School, NT since
1981 and was appointed as the acting principal in September 2004. He was
then appointed as the principal of the school in June 2007 after attaining
his Certification for Principalship. Mr. Ku is the vice-chairman of the Tai Po
& North District Secondary Schools Area Committee of Hong Kong Schools
Sports Federation (the “Federation”) and the chairman in the Federation’s
Tai Po & North District Competition Committee. He is also the vice-
chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals” Association.

Senior Management

Wan Lam Keng,

aged 53, Senior Management

is the senior business manager of the Group. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in June 1988 and has over 28 years of experience in retailing and trading
business. She is responsible for the Group’s Urgent Requirement Service
division. She is the wife of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Lee Yiu Kong, Winson,

aged 55, Senior Management

is the general sales manager of the Group. Before he joined the Group
in June 1991, he had over 12 years of experience in customer service in
the banking industry. He is responsible for the sales and marketing of the
electronic components of the Group.

Ho Siu Wan,

aged 48, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of
the Company. She is responsible for the financial management as well
as human resources functions of the Group. Ms. Ho holds a professional
diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She joined the Group in May 2001 and has over 25 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, taxation and financial management.
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Tsang Ka Man,

aged 47, Senior Management

is the sales & marketing director of Milliard Devices Limited. Mr. Tsang
graduated from the University of Sunderland with a Bachelor (Hons)
Degree in Digital Systems and Electronic Engineering. Before he joined the
Group in September 2001, he worked for a number of integrated circuit,
semiconductors (Brand from Japan, Korea, etc), sensors, radio frequency
and passive components companies as sales and marketing manager.
He is responsible for sales and marketing activities of integrated circuit,
sensors, radio frequency integrated circuit and passive components (i.e.
battery, motor, relay, crystal (oscillator) and inductors etc.) of the Company
in both Hong Kong, China, Taiwan and South-East Asia market.

Lam Sun Hung,

aged 47, Senior Management

is the marketing director of APower Holdings Limited. He obtained a
Master of Business Administration from University of Wales (Newport).
He has engaged in the IT industry for more than 30 years and has in depth
understanding on the market trend and market demand. He has earned
rich and solid experiences in the operation of products agentship and
distribution. He has taken part in the industry of environmental protection
and energy conservation and to lead the Group into the environmental
protection market. Mr. Lam joined the Group in April 2002 and is focusing
on the development of agent line product and solution services business.

Hung Lok Lam, Joyce

aged 26, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Videocom Technology (HK)
Limited. Ms. Hung joined the Group in August 2011 and is responsible
for overseeing the product development and brand management of wishh!,
and merchandising and marketing wide range of cosmetic products for the
customers of the Group. Ms. Hung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree in Psychology from the University of Hong Kong. She is the
daughter of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the
niece of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the niece of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year under review except for the
following deviations:

According to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs") are not
appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law
111 of the Company's Bye-laws.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code provides that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the
Company provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire. As continuation of the services of the
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the successful
implementation of any long term business plan, the Board believes
that present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under
review.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising
from the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management
(as the case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed
and shall be under constant review.

22

e JRCK
EEEHNETOEEARRRAUREF - 52
AMGEEARAREENE - HEERBUE

-

ARBREOBFEAN—BEETEERERZMA
RamEs EmRA(T EWRR DM $4pr st
EERTAI([REE AT ZFANRI - 1ET
SR BEIE SRR SN -

RBEREETZSTRANREALE - FETT
EEERETENZAERASRET - ARFE
TIFMITER(IBIIFRITES ) A IFRIETEE
HMEM  WARBARRATZREMBIEIE
RARBBRRBFRGWESENERBIT -

EEERTRIZ TG EAL2MRE - 8EF
(BRREETENREZEEZES)ARIEB=F
WERE—R - AT ARBZARHAARE
ITERBERTREBESEARNREERSER
ABETERAEENR - BEREFEREIEFRS
ZEEU TN TR EBE RSN CEEZR
- EEeMERKR I ARR RRRER
mE&aEF -

HERETEHEFRZ S
ARAREFMERG 2 BFEETA - ZTAZ
BT B T AR B 101 <7 U AT TR
%o GAARMFHEESHE  2ERFERE
SRR F N — B2 T E S EE T AT
RERE -

EFLTBNBZ @ERE
ART-EER-HRE  ZHREWNBEE
FRBRERRABRAALNEFABRERE
CRIERTRE) 2 BEMEE EAEK - R -
BB - BT - PIX R SIRE 2 A WH
5 o B (R B BT I 55 BB ARG -

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2016



Corporate Governance Report
e SR

Board of Directors

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share
value.

The Board comprises a total of eight directors, with five executive
directors, namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Hung Ying Fung, Mr. Yeung Kwok
Leung, Allix and Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho (“Mr. Moutinho”)
(resigned on 1st April 2016) and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. One of the
INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules.
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure. She is
also the sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr. Hung Ying Fung is the
brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Mr. Moutinho resigned as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 1st April 2016. Despite his resignation as an executive director
of the Company, he continues to be a director of five subsidiaries of the
Company.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate
governance, the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th
August 2013. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 17
to 21 of this annual report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business
strategies and annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of the management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board such that the Board acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed and approved by the Board before
execution. All directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and adequate and reliable information is given to the Board in a
timely manner.
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The CEQ is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The
CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group’s
operations.

The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting on the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all
directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less
than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly
understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
who is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place
to enable directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.

Four regular Board meetings of the year under review were scheduled
in advance at approximately quarterly intervals. The directors can
attend meetings in person or by means of a conference telephone or
other communications facilities in accordance with Bye-law 136 of the
Company's Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control
and corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Group's performance and financial position.

During the year, the Company had arranged an in-house training session on
the update of corporate governance and development on risk management
and internal control to the directors. In addition, the directors had attended
external courses, conferences and luncheons organised by various
organisations.
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The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial
updates and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments. A summary of trainings received by directors
during the period from 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016 based on the
records provided by the directors is as follows:

EENENARSFERRABEB LY BEANE
HEFHEH ARHEMERERE AR RNAH
FERMERERFBERNOMEER - mREBRREH
2t BEER_FT-AFOA-RAE-_FT—RX
FoA=T - HAEEEZEIIZBENT

Type of trainings

EIIER
Seminars
and/or Corporate
In-house conferences events
training and/or forums or visits Reading
BERS
REBERS LCEIHR
Name of Director EEgE A EBEEI RANE Z5 MEER
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Rl EiE v v v v/
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl HEEL L v/ v/ 4 v
Mr. Hung Ying Fung A E g 4 v 4 v
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HERE v v v 4
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Manuel Arnaldo de v v 4 4
Moutinho Sousa Moutinho %t &
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman?t 4 v v
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFFEL v/ 4 4 v
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric mOKEEE v/ v

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

There is no specific term of the appointment of INEDs. However, they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws
of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code
which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for specific terms
subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Board considers
that this current practice is fair and reasonable and does not intend to
change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company's Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting. Currently, two directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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According to Bye-law of 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members
may, at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a
director at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office
provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of
removing a director shall contain a statement of the intention so to do and
be served on such director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at
such meeting, such director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for
his/her removal.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 29th August 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties

including:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in corporate governance reports.
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Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on
20th February 2006 to assist the board of directors of the Company to
oversee the remuneration packages of and determine the remuneration
structure of the executive directors and senior management of the
Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai Cheung, Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference including the duties of
the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2013/2014, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses
payable to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits
of the Group is HK$9 million or above but is less than HK$12 million;
and (ii) 10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group
is HK$12 million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee
also approved to delegate the authority to the Chairman of the Group to
determine the distribution level on the management bonus payout to all
executive directors and each executive director shall entitle to not less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.

On 18th February 2016, the Remuneration Committee resolved that a new
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the
fiscal year 2016/2017 will be adopted which provides that the aggregate
amount of management bonuses payable to all executive directors in
respect of any financial year of the Company shall not exceed (i) 5%
of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$8
million or above but is less than HK$11 million; and (ii) 10% of the net
profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$11 million or
above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee also approved that,
with effect from the fiscal year 2016/2017, it shall delegate the authority
to the Chairman of the Group to determine the distribution level on the
management bonus payout to all executive directors and each executive
director shall entitle to not less than 10% of the aggregate amount of the
management bonuses.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Directors” and Senior Management's Profile” section for the year:
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th
March 2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of the
Company. Its current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Mr.
Charles E. Chapman and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference including the
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to
the Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001
to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee was
amended on 18th February 2016 and the amended version has been posted
on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.

During the meetings held in the year under review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following work:

(i) reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year
ended 31st March 2015 and the interim results and the financial
reports for the six months ended 30th September 2015;

(i1) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit
on the operations and performance of the Group;
(iii) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the

Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules
and other statutory compliance;
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(vi) reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2015/2016
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.

Attendance of Individual Directors

The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General
Meetings during the year under review is set out in the table below.

Number of meeting(s) attended/held in 2015/2016
RZB-5/-B-Xk

HE/BTEERER
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EEng EZE8E BRZEESH FHZEeeR ERZEERE RREFAE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HelEEL 474 N/AiE A N/AiE A N 1
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEELT 4/4 N/ATE A il N/ARNEF 1
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HRELE 4/4 N/ATE A N/ATEA N/AREF 1
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BERLE 4/4 N/ATE A N/ATEA N/ATEF 1
Mr. Manuel Amaldo de Sousa Manuel Arnaldo de 1/4 N/ATiE A N/ATiE A N/ATiE A 0/1
Moutinho Sousa Moutinhot 4

Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. ChapmanZC 4 3/4 3/4 N/ATEA N 0/1
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REHET 4/4 4/4 1 1 1N
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKERE 4/4 4/4 i N/AREF 1

Auditors’ Remuneration A2 R A 4

For the year ended 31st March 2016, the remuneration paid to the #HEZT—AF=ZA=+—HLEFE  IHFTE
Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as A RZEEMBEAB S EEAER AR 2 B&
follows: N

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered PR AR 3% Bt/ ENER
HK$'000

FAT

Audit services ZE AR 828
Non-audit services — Interim review FSERZERTS — P EAZE R 200
1,028

EREIEEERAT - —B— NEER -
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group.

As at 31st March 2016, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 46 and
47 of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2016
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal control systems
of the Group. The Group's system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, is designed to evaluate the
Group's risk, achieve the division goals and business objectives, maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of financial information for
internal analysis or for publication, comply with relevant legislation and
regulations.

During the year under review, the directors had conducted review of the
effectiveness of the systems of internal control in respect of the financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function of the
Group.
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Investors Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board, (ii) updated company news and published announcements of
the Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company and (iii) different means are opened to the shareholders and
investors for communication channel such as (a) by mail to the Company's
head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San
Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852) 2397 6628; or (c)
by fax at (852) 2397 0339.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises
the Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Right

(i) Procedures by which shareholders can convene a
Special General Meeting (“SGM”)
The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon
which all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith
proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
original deposit.
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(ii) Procedures for putting forward proposals at General

(iii)

Meetings (“GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are
no less than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of
the shareholders concerned and be deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the GM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to
include the resolution in the agenda for the meeting provided
that the shareholders concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists
and deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
During the year under review, there has no change in the Company’s
Memorandum of Assaciation and Bye-laws.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March 2016.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic parts,
components and equipment and computer products and mobile accessories
and trading of beauty products.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 48 and 49 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$1 million, which was paid on 21st December 2015.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cent 0.5
per ordinary share, totalling HK$1 million for the year ended 31st March
2016.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 3rd August
2016 to 8th August 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend
the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2nd August 2016.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 12th August
2016 to 15th August 2016, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected, and the final dividend will be paid on 25th August 2016. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11th August 2016.
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Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$86,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company's listed shares during the year ended 31st March 2016.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho (resigned on 1st April 2016)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric
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Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho (“Mr. Moutinho”) resigned on
st April 2016 as executive director of the Company due to his health
condition. Mr. Moutinho has confirmed that he has no disagreement with
the board of directors and nothing relating to the affairs of the Company
needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung are required to
retire by rotation under the Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure who did not enter into any service contract with the Company)
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons may
be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
upon and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the New Share
Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is in line with current
Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share

Option Scheme up to the date of this report. The New Share Option
Scheme expired on 7th August 2013.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2016, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(i) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

o AT B B AR B AR i O
Z HE B

R-B—AFZAZ+—B  FRAFEERT
BRI REBEATRAR R REAYEE
(% REH R ED ([ EHRBEGEN DS
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B AR FRIEE 5 R 10 B2 (6 B 2
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BHAX B HAERAR (B2 s RAR
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(i) A2 V) 5 B 0. 109 o =2 3% 8 %

Number of shares

R BB
Long/short Personal Family Corporate

Name of Director position interests interests interests Percentage
EEnR HR/ KR AR Rk NEER Btk
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long - 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
Rl EiE T S (Note a)

(Pff5Ea)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long - 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
BB R L ey ) (Note a)

(F45ta)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 - - 13.50%
HEEFRAE a5}
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long - 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
15 BRI A= o) (Note b)

(Pif5ED)
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho Long 580,000 - - 0.29%
Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho %t 4 e
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in 7 35 J2 /7 B 88 3R e AN B2 185 05 8 5%
Equity and Debt Securities (continued) ZHELR ()
(i) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (i) A2 w4 B i {5 0.10 # 50 = 3% 8 1B

(continued) (%)
Notes: B 5E
(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to (a) 125 A% 1% FAM2B Holding Limited# 48 + 5% A

(b)

50% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife,
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl. Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were deemed to be interested in 90,000,000
shares of the Company under SFO. Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.

These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company
owned as to 50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50%
by his wife, Ms. Wan Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were deemed to be interested in 30,000,000
shares of the Company under SFO. The interests of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and
duplicated each other.

(b)

AR ER EE T HB50% - feR T50%A)
MEZTFHRELLTHES - Bl RIEE
FREBEED - ES =B RIBRELLE
1 45 V£ 72.90,000,000 A% A& 2 R B 15 R A
T o AREF T RIERELTHE 2R
= IYERKIRG S - WEARELE -

1t 55 % 1 B3 Bestmark Management Limited+¥
B ZRRABERELEREAF% - M
BRTS0% B EZ FEMRBRZ TS ©
b REBEEHFRBAE G - HSEREE
K2 HRIB 42 £ 4545 1 72 30,000,000 A A8 22
AIRDFEEER - BEREEREMN
Bt HAEzERERNKROER
WEMHERE o

(ii) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in a (i) W /B2 &l & Wk AW AR ([5H 9
subsidiary — Maxfair Distribution Limited (“Maxfair”) R 1) B B THIE 1,009 76 2 JE 5 T HE R
%t Jit 1y
As at 31st March 2016, each of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Ms. RZE—RFZA=Z+—H8 " HAn =g
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, Mr. Hung Ying Fung and Mr. Yeung Kwok T GEEL T EEEEERGBER
Leung, Allix has beneficial interests in his/her personal capacity in EEZSEBUEAGIEREAE FHIEKE
the following number of non-voting deferred shares in Maxfair: ZEBERERERBELERD
Number of
Nature of Long/short non-voting
Name of Director interest position deferred shares Percentage
EEnR EmtE "R/ KR EEROGEE Aokt
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Personal Long 300,000 30%
HalEigt EA "e
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Personal Long 300,000 30%
BEEL L & A e
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Personal Long 200,000 20%
HEERE EA HaE
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Personal Long 200,000 20%
BEREE EA e
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)

(iii)

38

Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each in a subsidiary -
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited (“Mobicon-
Mantech”)

As at 31st March 2016, Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho
had beneficial interests in his personal capacity in Mobicon-
Mantech as follows:

P R AT BRI I A B AR B W 07

Z Rt ()
(iii) P J& 2 FlMobicon-Mantech Holdings

Limited ([ Mobicon-Mantech | ) % Ji%
T 1.003€ 702 ¥ i it
RZZE—R"F=HA=+—8 ' Manuel
Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho %t 4= A fEA &
& 257 A Mobicon-Mantech #2520 :

Nature of Long/short Number of
Name of Director interest position shares Percentage
EEgE EmitE "R/ KR RBEE Aokt
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho  Personal Long 490 49%
Manuel Amaldo de Sousa Moutinho %t 4 A HaE

Save as disclosed above and other than certain non-beneficial
ordinary shares of the subsidiaries held in bare trust for the Group,
as at 31st March 2016, none of the directors or the chief executive
of the Company had an interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year, the directors and
the chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been
granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or
warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company and/or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries
or its holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors or the chief executive of the Company to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO).
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Company had adopted a Code
of Conduct regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable
enquires with the directors of the Company, the Company was of the view
that the directors had complied with the said Code of Conduct throughout
the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2016, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

i 77 38 by Z B S J
RBE-E-—AF=A=+—ALEFE  A27
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Al - BRERIRE TS ST RAIN I 0IEET
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ABEHE  AATRE  EFRFN-EYT
iRl -
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BARET [BERH | — B RGE MEHRMTE
26 FTEIN - AR R SHEAEANE D RERT S
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AR ZEFRERAL °

F A B LAt N AR 2 R BEA
TR Z B
R-Z-AFZA=Z+—0  BFELAEEHRN
& THALCREERARESRITHEE)R
AR TR RABBRRAD o S 1R A 3 T B
PIEXVERE2 35 8.2 X AR A A R EE 2 1
MR

Number of shares

R BB
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interest Percentage
8 A HR KR BREEA Rk R Btk
M2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 - 45%
ey} (Note (a))
(M5E(a))
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 - 15%
"R (Note (b))
(Kt EE(b)
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long - 30,000,000 15%
EMBL L HR (Note (b))
(M47E(b))
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

(continued)
Notes:
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”.

(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management
Limited and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2016, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods to its five
largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's
major suppliers are as follows:

14%
34%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted continuing connected transactions
and connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
such connected transactions are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions A R L2 B

1.

The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from
M-Bar Limited (“M-Bar"). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.

On 30th September 2013, Mobicon Holdings Limited (“MHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new
tenancy agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreements in
respect of Private Car Parking Space Nos. 6, 7, 24 and 25 on 3rd
Floor, Private Car Parking Space Nos.6 and 13 on 4th Floor, Units
1-11 on 7th Floor, Units 1-4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd
Floor, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King
Fuk Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (collectively, the
“Properties”) for a term of three years from 1st October 2013 to
30th September 2016, of which for the period from 1st October
2013 to 31st January 2014, the aggregate monthly rental of the
new tenancy agreement was of HK$213,000 and for the period
from 1st February 2014 to 30th September 2016, the aggregate
monthly rental of the new tenancy agreement was of HK$222,000.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the Group
and ancillary use.

EREEEERAR - ZF—REER

1.

(a)

A E B 15 A T EM-Bar Limited ([ M-Bar])
MAZEHRE - M-Barfh A8l =18
T BREZETRERELESRER
HEA30% - 30% M 20% %5 - I i 5 AR
SEHEBRFEEH T20%ER - LAY
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

(b)

42

On 30th September 2013, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M Bar to renew the lease agreement in respect
of Portion of 1st Floor and 3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of three years
commencing from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2016, at an
aggregated monthly rental of HK$105,000.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary office (in
respect of Portion of 1st Floor) and godown for storage (in respect
of 3rd Floor).

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$2,943,000 (Note 26) to M-Bar.

On 30th September 2013, Mantech Electronics (Proprietary)
Limited (“Mantech Electronics”) as tenant, an indirect 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new lease agreement
with UGD Property (Proprietary) Limited (“UGD Property”), in
respect of Erf 45, 47 and 49, New Centre Township, 30 and 32 Laub
Street, New Centre, Johannesburg in South Africa for a term of
three years commencing from 1st October 2013 to 30th September
2016 at monthly rentals of (i) ZAR 113,294 (approximately
HK$88,483) per month for the period from 1st October 2013 to 30th
September 2014; (ii) ZAR 119,526 (approximately HK$93,349) per
month for the period from 1st October 2014 to 30th September
2015; and (i) ZAR 126,099 (approximately HK$98,484) per month
for the period from 1st October 2015 to 30th September 2016. UGD
Property is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director
of AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings (Proprietary)
Limited, Mantech Electronics, Mobicon International Limited and
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited (all are subsidiaries of the
Company) and owns 49% interest in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Limited.

The leased premises are used for office purpose for the Group’s
operations in South Africa.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$829,000 (Note 26) to UGD Property.

BH AR 5 (2)
F AR 5 (4)

(b)
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

3.

On 30th September 2013, Mantech Electronics as tenant entered
into the new lease agreement with Tiger Moth Trading No.53
(Proprietary) Limited (“Tiger Moth”), in respect of 12 Lennox
Road, Greyville, Durban in South Africa for a term of three years
commencing from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2016 at
monthly rentals of (i) ZAR 31,006 (approximately HK$24,216) per
month for the period from 1st October 2013 to 30th September
2014; (ii) ZAR 32,712 (approximately HK$25,548) per month for the
period from 1st October 2014 to 30th September 2015; and (iii) ZAR
34,511 (approximately HK$26,953) per month for the period from
Tst October 2015 to 30th September 2016. Tiger Moth is a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director of AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited,
Mantech Electronics, Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited (all are subsidiaries of the Company)
and owns 49% interest in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.

The leased premises are used for office purpose for the Group's
operations in South Africa.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$149,000 (Note 26) to Tiger Moth.

On 1st April 2014, the Group has entered into a Supply Agreement
with PC Supply Limited ("PC Supply”) for the supply of IC, passive
components and equipment, and computer; and supply of IT
support and services to the PC Supply and its subsidiaries (“PC
Supply Group”). The Supply Agreement with PC Supply was at
a term of three years commencing from 1st April 2014 to 31
March 2017 at maximum sales amount of (i) HK$2,000,000 for the
period from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015; (ii) HK$2,500,000
for the period from 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016; and (iii)
HK$3,000,000 for the period from 1st April 2016 to 31st March
2017. PC Supply is owned as t0 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus
Computer Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
respectively. A Plus is owned as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying
Fung and as to the remaining 20% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,
all of whom being the executive directors of the Company.

During the year, the Group sold goods amounting to HK$1,479,000
(Note 26) to PC Supply Group.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

5. On 1st April 2014, the Group entered into a Purchase Agreement
with PC Supply Limited (“PC Supply”) for the purchase of liquid
crystal display, and mobile and computer accessories from PC
Supply and its subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”). The Purchase
Agreement with PC Supply was at a term of three years
commencing from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2017 at maximum
purchases amount of (i) HK$3,000,000 for the period from 1st
April 2014 to 31st March 2015; (i) HK$3,500,000 for the period
from 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016; and (iii) HK$4,000,000 for
the period from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017. PC Supply is
owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer Shop Limited
("A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is
owned as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fu=ng and as to the
remaining 20% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being
the executive directors of the Company.

During the year, the Group purchased goods amounting to
HK$1,616,000 (Note 26) from PC Supply Group.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) consider
these continuing connected transactions have been conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal commercial
terms and continuation of these transactions in the future will be
beneficial to the Group.

These continuing connected transactions have also been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company who have confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions have been (a) entered into by
the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
conducted on normal commercial terms; and (c) entered into in accordance
with the terms of the lease agreements governing the transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole. The independent non-executive directors
of the Company have also confirmed that the aggregate value of the
transactions were within the respective maximum amounts as agreed with
the Stock Exchange.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed to the Board that these
continuing connected transactions have received the approval of the Board
and have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the lease
agreements governing the transactions. The auditors of the Company have
also confirmed that the aggregate value of the transactions were within
the respective maximum amounts as agreed with the Stock Exchange.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due, or (ii) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$68,678,000 (2015: HK$69,085,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 131 and 132.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2016
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd June 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MOBICON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mabicon
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 48 to 130, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2016, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act of Bermuda, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31st March 2016, and of
the Group's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P05769

Hong Kong, 23rd June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
ek
For the year ended 31st March 2016 BlZE —F—"FE=H=+T—HIFE

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—hHF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

= FET FET

Revenue Wz 5 684,374 695,057

Cost of sales SHER R (520,084) (546,454)

Gross profit EF 164,290 148,603

Other income, gains and losses HwA - W R EE 6 1,892 2,193

Distribution and selling expenses SHENMIEHEER (50,308) (46,437)

General and administrative expenses ~ —fRMITINEIEE A (97,661) (84,519)

Operating profit LS F 18,213 19,840

Finance costs B & R 8 (2,438) (1,922)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate ~ J&{h — REj Bk & A T

(B8),/ &= F (32) 22

Profit before income tax % BT 15 F4 Bl v ) 15,743 17,940

Income tax expense FrisfiA > 9 (5,587) (6,159)

Profit for the year F R A 7 10,156 11,781

Profit attributable to: FEA & A -
Equity holders of the Company KAREREBEA 3,766 7,789
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M = 6,390 3,992

10,156 11,781

Earnings per share for profit attributable 4 RN A B #E 2
to the equity holders of the Company 5 8 A JE{& %

during the year 2 GIREA
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 10 e AR HK cents 3.897811L

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial % S BN G A BB RERMFT11HE -
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SN T

For the year ended 31st March 2016 {2 — T — ~NF=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015

—NE —ET—AF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FExT FHET

Profit for the year F )m K| 10,156 11,781

Other comprehensive expense Hitt 2 HEAX

Items that may be reclassified PN - an sy Ly

subsequently to profit or loss ZIEH
Currency translation differences: Eﬁ@?@%%%ﬁi :
— Subsidiaries —MBA (7.461)
— Associate - 5’#%’2\7 -
Release of translation reserve upon HEHTE R A8

disposals of subsidiaries L%‘Tﬁ‘”fﬁﬁ -
Item that will not be reclassified TEEFHHEE

to profit or loss B2 H /::/'
Revaluation (loss)/gain on property, EEYE  HENMK

plant and equipment 2 (E18) W 330
Other comprehensive expense, Hih 2 HERZ

net of tax (BEHMRIE) (7.131)
Total comprehensive income 2HEIMAERE 4,650
Total comprehensive income e 2 E A LREE:

attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RARRE=RFAA 3,020
Non-controlling interests FEIERRAE 2 1,630

4,650

BREIEEERAT - —B— NEEH 20



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR M BIRDLR

As at 31st March 2016 A=—ZE—~F=A=+—H

Note

=
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 14
Interests in associates RN oy 17(a)
Current assets REEE
Inventories FEe 18
Trade receivables JEWE SR 19
Other receivables and deposits HAh R IE R iE S 26(b)
Current income tax recoverable B dEEEE R ey
Cash and bank balances R4 RIBITHEE 20
Total assets BEHAE
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FEfTE SRR 21
Other payables and accruals E At - R IE I

fEETE R 26(c) & (d)

Amount due to an associate JES — B E ARIFIA  17()
Short-term bank loans EHIRTTE X 22
Current income tax liabilities BIERFR SR B &
Net current assets REBEERE

50

2016
i
HKS$'000
FERT

20,942

20,942

192,763
58,050
25,449

589
39,963

316,814

337,756

31,692

22,228
13
100,828
1.415

156,176

160,638

2015
TR
HK$'000
FAT

211,899
60,126
17,517

430
45,235

335,207

357,919

58,939

22,058
10
93,028
2,019

176,054

159,153
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LA BRI R

As at 31st March 2016 A=-—Z—NE=A=+—H

2016 2015

AL —T-AF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FiT FHET

Total assets less current liabilities ZEZERTHES 181,580 181,865

Net assets EEFE 181,580 181,865

Capital and reserves attributable AN AQAFEZFEA

to the equity holders of the BERAR #E
Company
Share capital i 23 20,000 20,000
Reserves B 143,456 145,973
163,456 165,973
Non-controlling interests IR R A 18,124 15,892
Total equity fEREEE 181,580 181,865

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for #HZAMBREXCN -_E—"ENA-_T+=H%
issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd June 2016 and signed on its behalf EE=e# EREFEE  THh N IEERRKEES

by: BE
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
Pk 2 B8E
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Director
FiE B E EFRITEAEE,

BREIEEERAT - —B— NEEH -



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR ER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 HLE — T — A "F=A=+—HILFE

Balance at 1st April 2014 RoE-IE
MA—H2 &% 000 16,706 800 (38 996 121289 144897 17533 182430

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ERZEWALE
Acquisition of additional interestina BB A REIMER
subsidiary - - - L - 8 % (952) (456
Disposal of property, plant and equipment £ E%% - BEREE - - - - e 36 - - -
Release of revaluation reserve upon % BRRREAER
depreciation of property, plant and ERERREE

- b 30 1789 300 1630 4,650

equipment - - - - (114) 114 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling interests 2 F3EERIER 2R E - - - - - - - Qny o o2ng
Dividends of the Company: ARFIRE :
2014 final dividend “E-mERHKRE - - - - - (1,000 (1,000 - (1,000
2015 interim dividend “E-nERfkE - - - - - (1,000 (1,000 - (1,000
Balance at 315t March 2015 W-E-1%

ZR=t-HeEs 20,000 16,706 800 (8.915) 6528 130854 145973 15892 181,865

Representing: THER:
2015 final dividend “E-IERERS 1,000
(thers Hi 129854

130,604
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A ER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 BLE — T — A "F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at st April 2015 RZE-1%
MA—R2 & 20,000 16,706 800 8.915) 6528 13084 145913 15892 181,865
Total comprehensive income for the year —~ FRZEUNLE - - - [39%) (357 3766 (17 223 1715
Release of revaluation reserve upon % BRRE
depreciation of property, plant and NERERERE
equipment - - - - 112 m - - -
Dividends of the Company: ARARE -
2015 final dividend “E-nERERS - - - - - (10000 {1,000 - (1,000)
2016 interim dividend ZE-RERERE - - - - - (100 (1000 - (1000)
Balance at 31st March 2016 Ro2-X%
ZR=t-Rz&# 20000 16,706 800 (12841) 6,05 132732 143456 18124 181,580
Representing: RER:
2016 final dividend “ENERERE 1000
Others Ef 131,732
132,732
Note: Bt

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares ~ BRANEEE DIEARARE BT ERR 2 EE  ERE-_TT
issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of ~ —4P A+ N\ B#T2 BEEBRRDTE 2 WEB R TR
subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took — IN_ER D HE 2 MM E 2 MR =% ©

place on 18th April 2001.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Bl aimER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 &2 —Z —

NEFE=ZA=1T—HILFE

2016
—E—RF
Note HK$'000
FfsE FHRT
Cash flows from operating activities EEEKELCHERE
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEREL/(BR) 2 24
operations R 5 11,625
Overseas income tax paid ERBINREHR (5,826)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREENEH (215)
Net cash generated from/(used in) aREL (A2
operating activities WEFHE
Cash flows from investing activities & FZBHEEZRERE
Interest received EHFILE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BE B Y% - = &R 14

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Increase/(decrease) in amount due to an
associate

HEME - BB MR
PSR

e — B 2 A RIFRIR
20, Cid)

Net cash used in investing activities

REESS R 2R FH

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Dividends paid to the Company's
shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Repayments of short-term bank loans
Proceeds from short-term bank loans
Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary

MEETHELECRERE
ERFLE
Bk FARRBRRZR

Bk T IRE R 2 BB

EREHIRITER

FEEIRTT E SRS FOA

Ui B — PRI B /BB 2 R ER S
R

(2,438)

(2,000)

(648,115)
655,915

Net cash generated from financing
activities

BMERBEL RS FE

54

2015
—T-RF
HK$°000
FET

(9,434)
(4,850)
(260)

(14,544)

186
(9,890)

1,822

(1)

(1,883)

(1,922)
(2,000
(2,719)
(390,113)
424178

(496)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEBlEER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 Bl E — T — ~NF=H=1+—HILFE

2016
ZE—RF
Note HK$'000
bz T
Net increase in cash and ReRBASEEYEMTE
cash equivalents 3,422
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzREeNIBEEEY
of the year 45,235
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREH) 2 (8,694)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZESRBESEEY

of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents:

Cash at bank and in hand

Be MReFEMER
DT

RITMFHERE

39,963

BERAEEERLR - —B—AFFR

2015
—ZET—hHF
HK$'000
FHT

10,501

41,257

(6,523)

45,235

45,235
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B R M

2.1

56

General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic parts, components and equipment
and computer products, mobile accessories and trading of cosmetic
products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are set out in the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors (the
“Board”) on 23rd June 2016.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain property, plant and equipment, which are carried at fair
value.

2.1

— RO
ERMEEERAR([ARR]) REMH
BAR(GHE [AKEDEBREEER
DHETEMNH  THRESEEKER
RFEEN - A RBEE L2 X5

ARRRBEAREQAREERFEZLM
R REHRRERAT - HEfM#EE
REZLEME 2 MU TN AR R FIR o

ARARBRHME—_TEE—FRALtHRE
BERBEXSMER AR (B £
o

BRRAERIN  WEFEMBRERAT
BT (FEIT)HIE -

HEREEHBRREN T —XRFA
—tZHEARAEFS([EEg )it
R IR AT

FERGaHBORBEE

RAENEGAMBRRAEBZEIES
ABREEIMT - REAEAN 0 WF
BERRAEZ2RFEEREM -

B BB e
RAMBBRRDREEZEGTMAE
([BEGERE BRI EEBTER
SREAN(TEBHBREER DRE - Ut
SN ERE M MERBMIIB R R RMED R
Bz EmARAN( EmARRRE
ZERBEER -

RAMBBRRDBREBELXAERE
o WERBRAFEIEZETHE
R MR 2 EEVEHIERT ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B R M

2.1

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

New standards, revisions and amendments to existing standards
effective for annual periods beginning 1st April 2015, relevant to
the Group's operation and adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 19
(2011)
Amendments to HKFRS

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS

2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of this newly effective amendment to existing
standard does not result in substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policies or financial results.

In addition, the requirement of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation during the financial year, as a result, there are changes
to presentation and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

ERAEEERAR - —F—"FEH

2.1

(a)

FERGFHBORBEE )

B LI A (48 )
RAETAERUBRELR Z2EEHH
HKRE - BERAETERG GG -7
BENRAERAASESABRZBE
TIEL HE - P RREEH R BRE %
ZEE - ABRRAFTHEEMBRER
BEAFEZHBNMERE -

B F T RAEETE B BE#HEER

EAREEKEEAE  LEEAEE
ﬁ%?ﬂ ’ Hﬁé\iﬁ_ﬁip—qﬂ_aﬁﬁﬁﬁz
R AR BTATRR  METTRA
B IR BIE T A

BAG RS9 EEEMHS
(Z2——F)2EIX  RBEHR

BN BREE R BREE
(BFTA) —T-ZFH
—E-CFREH

L EE BT
BB RS £ BB REEL
(BEIA) “2——F3%
—E-=FRH

L EE

£ 4002 BT AR R A R A T A
TN B Y G R L AR
REAED -

BSOS - BB R B EG (F622F) 5E9
MIRAREFIZRERATRFERELE
Mo HIt - REMBHRRETERNZE
SITARBEEMES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B R M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations which have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1st April 2015 and have not been early

adopted:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

HKFRS 16 Leases*

Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to

HKFRS 2012-2014 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sales or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Investment Entities: Applying the
and HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception?
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial

(2011) Statements?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
and HKAS 41

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2016.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2019.

58

2

2.1

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B R M

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations which have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning on 1st April 2015 and have not been
early adopted: (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17
Leases, introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liahility representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should
recognize depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-
of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a
present value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The Directors will assess the impact of the application of HKFRS
16. For the moment, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of the application of HKFRS 16 until the
Group performs a detailed review.

Other than set out above, the Directors do not anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new standards and amendments to existing standard upon
initial application.

ERAEEERAR - —F—"FEH

2.1

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B R M

0%’
221

(a)

60

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group is exposed to, or has right to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

2

2.2
221

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B R M

2.2
221
(a)

(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

ERAEEERAR - —F—"FEH

2.2
221
(a)

(b)

(c)

FERGFHBORBEE )

Bt ) 2> Wl (4)

HERRE (&)

REE0H(E)

EEBNAE KRR Z EAIEER
BEZ SRR AN REIET 2 Ek
A RB AR 2 FEBL PGS
ABNEEFELATEZEEARRS
BE - WMEEBRE EERZIFER
BB R 2AFHAE 2 EE BB RNATE
BHEBARNEEFEZATE(WNEEE
BE) NBEMEREENGEAE2EKE
RPRER

SERARAMEZRS  BHRAREERR
REMZRGRMELEZ RBRKES T
VASISH o RERBIEIRT AL - KB
RAME2R2FECRF2A/EHAE
B RAREZ ST BR B -
TEEYXEEH BB LEIFEE
<05

" EEHARERHIR TR ESER S
ARIIERER 5 —AEES A ARSE
REBAZED)VETRS - FAENRK
BAFEEAMRBEBERENEARE
EFEREECZBIIEER © [[IFE
P s & PSRBT fE MR -

Ve

HIEHE 2 F]
EARBETBHBEGIE  ERNZER
ZIEAREBESIEERKREEGEE B
ZRAFEEFHAE  MEEEZSHIRN
BRERPER - HRILFBERBAR
SItEt 2 A m] - ARG BEEXTRE
[z P /N $Eﬁ@ﬁ2%ﬁ@ it
v BEREMEERANEREZE
BER EMNSBERENEEERNE
BHEEHREZTAAK - AIERE
H2ERANERZSBENDBEE
Bk e

61



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B R M
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2.3

62

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognized in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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2.3

2.4

2.5
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting period whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the
amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss) of associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognized
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealized
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.
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2.5
(b)

64

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “general and administrative
expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analyzed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss, and other
changes in carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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(d)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences
arising are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(d)

2.6

66

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold properties 60 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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2.6

2.7
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquire and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognized
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Distribution rights

Expenditures on rights acquired for manufacturing and distribution
of certain integrated circuit (“IC") products are recognized as an
asset and amortized on a straight-line basis over 4 years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are recognized.
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2.8

2.9

(a)

(b)

68

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortization
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits” and “cash and bank
balances” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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(c)
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date (the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset). Investments are initially recognized
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in
equity are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as “net gains and losses from equity on disposal/impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.
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2.10

2.11
(a)

70

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
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2.11
(a)

(b)

2.12

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses
the criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognized in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognized in the profit and loss. Impairment losses
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
purchases of raw materials.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

72

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.
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2.17

2.18

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and,if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.
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2.19

(a)

(b)

74

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liahility where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.19
(c)

2.20
(a)

(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in independently administered
funds. The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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2.20
(d)

2.21

76

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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2.22

(a)

(b)

(c)

2.23

2.24

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has
passed.

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans
is recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Service income, management fee and commission income are
recognized when the services are rendered.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2.25
(a)

(b)

78

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)~ is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

The party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i1) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group

or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. Group
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia, Singapore, Taiwan and Thailand and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to United States dollars (“"USD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange
risk is not significant and the Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk exposure should the need arise.
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMHEEEMe)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)
(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) miEE R ()
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) SMNE R Bz ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting TREMNBEAHREKEERABE
date to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates, NEEEE  MAEEMEHERTE
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before ZIERT - AREEBR TSR AT a A ¥ E
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and TTIERAIRE S IR E ) 2 GURAE o
liabilities).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign  in profit before (decrease)
currency rate income tax in equity*
BRATEBLAT
HhEETE SR, M/
TH/(F#) (A2) (HD)*
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
2016 —E-RF
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD HFaBLETRE
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD & #1 &% 5 £ T FHE
I Singapore dollar weakens against USD TWE T R E TR (E
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD R i3 T K3 T FHE
If South African Rand weakens against USD (¥R 3FRE HETRE
If South African Rand strengthens against USD MR FERE1E K2 T FHE
2015 —T-0F
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD HEF ety X E 5% (419) -
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD i & 8 5 £ T FHE -5% 419 -
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD WA IR TR E T E 5% (78) -
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD ~ fii#f i 7T . =T FHE 5% 78 -
If South African Rand weakens against USD  {¥EI3EE S K. =Tl E 5% (13) -
If South African Rand strengthens against USD @ 3EBS 45 3. =L AHE -5% 13 -
& Excluding retained profits * TEEBEEN
(ii) Price risk (i) 1B15 /7 bz
The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the years BE-Z-—R"EFRZFT-—H1F=H
ended 31st March 2016 and 2015. =ST-HLEEE AEETEEHEXR

ERRER -
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3.1
(a)
(iii)

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 MEEEEME e
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)
Market risk (continued) (a) 5 R ()
Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk lii) Bz w2 RN FEFERRE
The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly REEBZFEEHRLEZRFHTE
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings IRITIEE - REBMNEREZEEER
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest- REEEmMHRERNEMNER IR - RNE
rate risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings B REEZFFERGE BRI 22
have been disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial BER o AN £ B IR IR T A AT ] ) R R IR
statements. The Group currently does not have any interest rate KR BEEE—BEEXRMNXER
hedging policies. However, management monitors interest rate WA T EREREPERTERR o
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TREMMMAELMERERTE K
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held SERAEHAIGEMNCGERZEBE T
constant, of the Group's profit before income tax (through the B)RAEERAEFEATREERAEE
impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's equity. BN BURE °
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit Increase/
(decrease) before (decrease)
in basis points income tax in equity*
BRFBBIA
BEEm/ mAEm, ‘mEm/
(H2) (RA) ORA)*
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
2016 —E-RF
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (504) =
Hong Kong dollar AT (50) 504 =
2015 —Z-0F
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (465) -
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 465 -
* Excluding retained profits * TBEB T

ERAEEERAR - —F—"FEH
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(c)
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the counterparty
is managed at an early stage and sufficient provision is made for
possible defaults. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At 31st March 2016, the Group had several short-term bank loans
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$100,828,000 (2015:
HK$93,028,000). At 31st March 20186, the Group had unutilized
facilities of approximately HK$56,318,000 (2015: HK$26,096,000).

3
3.1
(b)

(c)

S0 5 R B 4 PR 4

o 5 L e PR 3 (42

EERB
AEBTHRIESREEY Tk ER
B ARRTRR SRR EEITNYT
TEESERR LR AUERRIELR
TR o AN - R EE RSB RN
i WEEERRLTEA -

AEBEYBREREESTER - AR E
HeMEE(BRRE MRITHESRIAR
His WA 2 FEERBRIRAFTOEF
R ERARBRESFNZETAZE
[Ei=a

ERAEEEHERESIEREEZ
EERBNE —SECHEERGELEHB
WMRMFFIIWE -

REEZ A
EXeRAERDESRBRERE Z &K
B YERIEEERDESRARER
mE o NEEAREZES  fHEE
HESIARPECEETE - A5EE
BREAERHELEBREERE  B&
ERBARERASREARARE R
BERAGBNIHER  EERBES
[\ o

R-ZE—RNF=ZA=+—H ' ' A&£EA
EETHERRTER  EEEENS
100,828,0003% 7T ( — & — F 4F : 93,028,000
BIL) RZE—RF=A=+—H ' &
& E K8 A& 4956,318,0008 T (==
— 4 : 26,096,00056 7T ) °
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMHEEEM e

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)

(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) TEELE R ()
The maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities rEEemEERBBERRE ABIRE
as at the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted HARAIRFEE 2 B HIE R AT -

payments, was as follows:

Weighted  On demand Total Total
average  or within From From Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate Tyear 1to2years 2to5years Syears  cashflow amount
RER
mE  RERF BenE

FHNE -fR -2 ZEIf BBEF ag REAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL  TAR  TEAR  TERr  TAR  TEx

216 ZB-RE
Trade payables EREHER 31,692 31,692 31,692
Other payables and accruals  E i JER FUE R

EaE-Gi 18176 18,176 18176
Amount due to an associate [T —FEEE A T

Eyre) 13 13 13
Short-term bank loans BHRFIER 268 101,346 101,346 100,828

151,221 151,221 150,709

2015 “T-nf
Trade payables EREHER 58,939 - - - 58,939 58,939
Other payables and accruals - A1 BT3B

EEH 16,336 - - - 16,336 16,336
Amount due to an associate  [EAT—FEEEE A7)

27E 10 - - - 10 10
Short-term bank loans BHRITER 24 93,524 - - - 93524 93028

168,809 - - - 168,809 168,313

BREIEEERAT - —B— NEEH -
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including short-term banks loans)
less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratios at
31st March 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

S0 5 o B 4 B 42 )

2 A o A T

FEEEREAY BIEAREAEET
S Y A ) - LB IR IR (3R
BEAMEREE AGERS  ARRE
SEE A B LURIE S SR o

RERFRABELERE  AEEAFHE
AR ZEEER - RREALR
HBITHR R EEERE

AEBREERBLRERER - It
KNREBFEGAESEETE - &
BERLREEAR(EREMRTE
FORAE LR FEWE -

ARBEZRBERTE - RZF—KF
R—Z—RE=F=+—HZEEBRE
PR

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—RFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHExT

Total borrowings [ER-EGEE] 100,828 93,028
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o IREe RIBEEEY (39,963) (45,235)
Net debt BER 55 60,865 47,793
Total equity T 4ATE 181,580 181,865
Gearing ratio BREBGBHLE 34% 26%
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 MEEEEME e
3.3  Fair value estimation 3.3 A°FfafhEE
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair THREBEREZDTARTFEINEREZS
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined BITA ZFFERATLT
as follows:
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical ° HRAEESBBETRME ZH
assets or liabilities (level 1). BOREHRR)(E—R) -
o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 . BRE—RBIE2REN  JEE
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (BMZ &%) sk (B R ERST
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) EBRAB EAESBRERAE
(level 2). (=) -
o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . WIKBBRAMEMSHEIEZE
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level EXaERAEBIEBERMSEH
3). ANB)(BE=H) -
At 31st March 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any financial R-E—RER_ZET—HF=ZA=+—
assets and liabilities that are measured at the above fair value B ANEBEWEEMAZEERATFERSE
measurements hierarchy. BRFTEsEMEERBLE -
There were no significant transfers of financial assets between FAN B FIRARE=HK AL
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. EANERTHEEER

EREIEEERAT - —B—NEEH .
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AR A B

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMHEEEMe)
Financial instruments by category 3.4 &RTHZER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZemITEBENERE Rz REEN
instruments at the reporting date are as follows: 35
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—AfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables: B R WIS -
— Trade receivables —EWE SER 60,126
— Other receivables and deposits — Efh e R IE R iR E 15,968
— Cash and bank balances — B4 NRITES 45,235
Financial liabilities THAE
Amortized costs: BIERA -
— Trade payables —ENESHEN 31,692 58,939
— Other payables —H A fER IR 18,176 16,336
— Amount due to an associate — R —REEE A RNE 13 10
— Short-term bank loans —RHBRITER 100,828 93,028

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 4
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are addressed below.

[BR 3 4 sl A W e 0
AEEHERBTERREMHERTE
bt BB - RIERERER TRER
HEREENARHE -

AEBBARBEL AT RER - BRE
& AUMELZEFHAARZEIR
HAERER - TXAwmEHT — @M
BEEZEERBERABERAELER
HEZBEARBR G RERR
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(a)

(b)

©

BRASERRAA - =8 —

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
(continued)

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand
and competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting date.

Estimated recoverability of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on ongoing assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and
current market conditions, and requires the use of judgments and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables at the end of each reporting period.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions
including Hong Kong, Mainland China, South Africa, Malaysia,
Singapore, Taiwan and Thailand. Significant judgment is required
in determining the amount of the provision for income taxes. There
are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

NEFH

(a)

(b)

(o)

5 S o wt At BRI B )

iz " S B
FEZAZRFE/BEXBKBEDMGE
AEERTEEHERNXZHRE - %F
HEDRBERITTREEUEEEMZ
BEHECRFEL - EPRREFHRE
FUHFZTHHECHBMATELEEKR
2 EEEREREHHEEREH
BREEZ AR

JRE WA B M sk % Lt JRE WALk YL 2 AV
A g ] A
AEEEEBRHENGEURFREZ TR

EI2[E - PASEEUE 5 BR 30 I H 4t FE LR

HIEEERERE  LEFHEDRER

PREMEBAZEERERRITHR

EEE - WA R A E R AEE e Mf@fﬁ’\
EHREHEEERBENTHEYRE

R % EAth FE WK IE 2 R B B o

3Bt

REBABMZ EREERZAFHR -
BREE  TEAM BMF - FKAE
CERNE i) 17 é;%&%’%ﬂi"?zféﬁﬁ’a

HMBERE - AFHEXNHE -
BEBBREP  BETR %&Fﬁﬁﬁaﬁ%é‘
MEEERTE - MxEERZREHIA

BRENIPLEZREBEIR  ZEEH
H TVE&%EEREE@FEEJZEHHH% &
EREFSHBREENTE
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Revenue and Segment Information Wt J 43 FHE B
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows: FARBR2ZWELT -
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E-FE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Revenue Wz
Sales of electronic components, automation HEEBFLM - BBMCAN
parts and equipment K igas 405,240 444,663
Sales of computer products, mobile HEBMER - FHEF
accessories and service income DA R IRFGIRA 107,774 141,034
Sales of cosmetic products HE 171,360 109,360
684,374 695,057

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports.
Upon the expansion of the trading of cosmetic retail business,
the Executive Directors have further considered the business
from product perspective and have assessed the performance of
three main business segments: (i) Electronic Trading Business
— Distribution of electronic components, automation parts and
equipment; and (i) Computer Business — Retail sales of computer
products, mobile accessories, distribution of computer products
and provision of IT outsourcing and solution services and (iii)
Cosmetic Retail Business — Retail sales of cosmetic products.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses, finance costs and share of loss of an associate.

ITBEERKRECHERARRAINTE
F(HTESF)) - BTEFEEHA
SEZABRE  UFERRARSEER
B RENEREZEREEECLED
B-ENREBELHRTERBER  #
TEERERAEE - TEREB N
BEEEEEBOBZRE - (|ETEE
EB-—DHETLMH BBAFRE
25 KBRS —EREmM - FHEMN
TEXY  DHEMERMREHREMAR
RE m MR T R Rlie ik m T E
EB—LmTEEL -

HTEFERBHKREERAX  BEK
AREE—FHBERTBRMNZ D EE
BAHEEE D RZRA -
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2016 are as

follows:
Electronic
Trading
Business
ETEE
%
HK$'000
THER
Revenue g 405,240
Segment results VRS 17,624
Interest expenses FIERAZ
Share of loss of an associate  JE{E— R & A RIEE
Profit before income tax BRATEHATRF
Income tax expense (Note 9) BT  (KI3E9)
Profit for the year FEREF
Other segment items included in - E 5| AR A BHER
the consolidated statement of ~ ZFEIEB T ¢
profit or loss are as follows:
Depreciation e
Provision for impairment W E ZERFURERE
of trade receivables
Write-down of inventories TFERUR
Reversal of provision for slow- Y3477 & B & @

moving inventories

BERAEEERLR - —B—AFFR

5 WakarBEER )

HE-_Z—R"E=A=+—HILEFEH
BEEMT
Cosmetic
Computer Retail
Business  Business Unallocated Group
fetzm
ElEE BEXH E r&EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TER TER THRr

107,774 171,360 684,374

(1,458)

2,192 (745) 18,213
(2,438)

(32)

15,743
(5,587)

10,156
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 — Wzt R E& Bl 2

The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2015 are as HEZ—hF=-A=1+—HIEFEH
follows: FEEWT
Electronic Cosmetic
Trading Computer Retail
Business Business Business  Unallocated Group
ETEE ez

X% BRXE TEXE  A9B ARE
HK$000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tar  TEr  TAT  TAT  TAR

Revenue & 444,663 141,034 109,360 - 695,057
Segment results NEEE 14716 (2,693) 7,929 (112) 19,840
Interest expenses FBERAY (1,922)
Share of profit of an associate  FE{G — & AR & Fl 2
Profit before income tax BRFTSB AR 17,940
Income tax expense (Note 9) P15 #4 593 (Ff3E9) (6,159)
Profit for the year FREF 11,781

Other segment items included in  E I ALZABRE
the consolidated statementof ~ Z 2 EEIEBEMT :
profit or loss are as follows:

Depreciation e 1,397 1,622 2,384 - 5,403
Provision for impairment R E FEE TR E RS
of trade receivables 2,024 1 - - 2,025
Reversal of provision for slow- /877 SBR[
moving inventories (2,530) (54) - - (2,584)
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, DREETERREYE  HELRE
intangible assets, inventories, trade and other receivables and ML EE 5 RBUKBSEZRHM
cash and bank balances. Unallocated assets comprise current FEWHIBE RIS RIRTTEEE - RO 8E
income tax recoverable and other receivables. BREMETWE BNHIFTE R & H 4 fE Uk
FKIA °
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated SEEEEERLAG AN EAGBE
liabilities comprise items such as other payables and accruals, EHMENZKELESER  BIHRE
current income tax liabilities and short-term bank loans. HeaERERTERZEIER -
Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property, ARBIERHEERERABSYE  MER
plant and equipment (Note 14). S (fEsE14) ©
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2016 and
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as
follows:

Assets BE 261,318
Associates il =N -
Total assets BEME 261,318
Liabilities =4 39,796

Additions to non-current assets  REIERENAE 808

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2015 and
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as
follows:

We g B i UGB ()
R-BE—AE-A=+—B2HEEE
RABURASZALEEREER
HEENT :

337,756

22,740 53,026 672 337,756

7,498 6,614 102,268 156,176

95 5,202 6,105

RZE-—RAF=R=+—HZo8EE
FEBURBEZRILFEZREIER
PEEWMT -

Assets BE 277,878 26,873 52,691 438 357,880
Associates YN - - - 39 39
Total assets BEAE 277,878 26,873 52,691 477 357,919
Liabilities aE 70,381 177 3,426 95,070 176,054
Additions to non-current assets  REIER B E E 1,786 1,418 6,686 - 9,890

BREAKEERAE - —B—RFFH
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5
The Group's revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia

Pacific, South Africa and Europe.

Weti B o G B )
REBYKFTENES  DAME -

FEREUMESE °

2016
—E-RF
HK$°000
FRET

Revenue

Hong Kong (country of domicile)
Asia Pacific

South Africa

Europe

Other countries

e 5

&8 (FEMER)
AR

ZES

BOM

H A Bz

457,848
132,109
82,453

1,410
10,554

684,374

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is

located.

Wi R IEBRKR AR ©

2016
i
HKS$'000
TR

250,181
34,658
52,245

Total assets EEHRE

Hong Kong BB

Asia Pacific 25 KM &

South Africa FA3E

Associates (Note 17) B N A (FIFE17)
Unallocated assets ROFEEE

337,084

()

672

337,756

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.

92

2015
—E—FRF
HK$'000
FET

442,969
149,752
84,023
1,241
17,072

695,057

2015
—ZET—RF
HK$'000
FHET

272,542
35,281
49,619

357,442
39
438

357,919

BEREREEMERDR
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5

Wets B o FE B 2)

Additions to non-current assets
Hong Kong

Asia Pacific

South Africa

NEFRBEE
BB

DA ER

ZES

2016 2015
—B-XF —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$°000
T TET
9,333

248

309

9,890

Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the

assets are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific and South Africa are
approximately HK$8,817,000, HK$11,386,000, and HK$739,000
respectively (2015: approximately HK$9,943,000, HK$11,995,000

and HK$774,000 respectively).

Information about major customers

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for

the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015.

6 Other Income, Gains and Losses

NEFRDEEREEMERNE °

MRER BAMENEIIEZERDE
E#E(ERIARRIN 9 514 /58,817,000
75 7T~ 11,386,000 7% 7T K% 739,000 % 7T ( =
T—HF: 9554 A9943000% T
11,995,000/ 7T 5. 774,000/ 7T ) °

HREREFZER
HE_Z-—R"EFR-_Z-—HF=H
=t HLEFE  BEFFPAKREAHE
10%3k A £ ©

HABA ~ WosE K R

2016
—E—XKF
HK$°000
FET

2015
—E—FF
HK$'000
FET

Management fee received from an associate
(Note 26(a))

Management fee received from third parties

Commission income

Interest income from bank deposits

Loss on disposals of subsidiaries

Other income

Bl —MBE R R Z
B2 8 (f17E26(a))

BREZAZEERE

A

RITF SR BUA

HEHRBAR ZEIE

HAb A

156
1,419
56
186

376

2,193

BERAEEERLR - —B—AFFR
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7  Profit for the Year 7 ARG
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): FRmEFE R (GTA) TF&IE -
2016 2015
AL —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Costs of inventories expensed FERARY 520,084 546,454
Employee benefit expense (Note 12) ‘BRI (MEE12) 64,976 64,628
Depreciation of owned property, BEWE  BWENEZE
plant and equipment e 7,422 5,403
Provision for impairment of trade receivables  FEULE 5 R 2R E B 1E
(included in general and administrative (Bt A—H K
expenses) THEEER) 611 2,025
Write-down of inventories (Note) FEMOR (FEE) 1,363 -
Reversal of provision for slow-moving T B ERD
inventories (included in cost of sales) (Bt AEERA) (2,580) (2,584)
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented R KERE
premises He 41,188 27,345
Auditors’ remuneration 1% EREM B & 1,028 1,028
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BE MEE
equipment (included in general and Frisas (B5t A—MK
administrative expenses) MITHEERER) (333) (628)
Net foreign exchange gains (included in M H e 5 (BRTA
general and administrative expenses) —MRRITHERER) (1,573) (1,660
Note:  The write-down of inventories of approximately HK$1,363,000 relates to BIFE ©  FEMORAIN 363,000/ 7038 R BINR A
electronic parts, components and equipment that have been destroyed BEMETTMH - THRES - ARE
by fire in the accident. This amount is included within “general and BEFAT-RETRERERIA -
administrative expenses”.
8  Finance Costs 8 HRIEMA
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET AT
Interest expense on short-term bank loans RAERITER M B ﬂ
9  Income Tax Expense 9  FiSBLBH X
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEENSHBEBEFAREEELIRE
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or BRZ AT ERTANIRI65%(ZE—H
derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits £ 1 16.5%) 2 BB o BINEN 2 BiE
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year RERNMMEERTE N AR S BAL S
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the BERERZHEAH -
Group operates.
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9  Income Tax Expense (continued) 9 B X#)
2016 2015
—EB—RE —ET—hF
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current income tax BVERFTIS B
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBERNEH 266
— Overseas taxation — BN IR 6,191
— Over provision in prior years —BEFERERE (298)
Income tax expense FriS i i 2 6,159
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the REBBRAERANGEN 2 RIBERBE
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits EANERBEAE 2 EREBIR - &
Tax rate as follows: PR
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax & FT 1554 Al Vs 7 17,940
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate 12 & & RS R 5 % 16.5%
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (ZZE—HF 165%)
AHE 2 HIA 2,960
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEIREEZHE
operating in other countries UNCIRNEIE e vd -7 1,966
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized MR 2 BN R IE
518 862
Utilization of previously unrecognized A LR M ARERZIIE
tax losses [agi=] (1.028)
Qver provision in prior years BEFEBRERE (298)
Others HAtb 1,697
Income tax expense Fris i 2 6,159
As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda, HRARR AR A RETM L 2 B
it is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035. AT MR ZE=RFREREHMN

BRERA -

BREIEEERAT - —B— NEEH o5
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Income Tax Expense (continued)

As at 31st March 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$40,915,000 (2015: HK$41,866,000) available for
offset against future profits (subject to the approval of the relevant
tax authorities). No deferred tax asset had been recognized in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The tax losses have no expiry date.

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31st March 2016 is based on the Group's profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$3,766,000
(2015: HK$7,789,000) and on the weighted average number of
200,000,000 (2015: 200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per

share as the Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015.

Dividends

10

11

P i3 B b % ()
N-TB—RE=A=+—8 A&£EZ
K E) AR IBE B4 440,915,008 T (= F
— A ¢ 41,866,000 7T) © BRERIBEIE
AL S R 2R A (B 758 BB IS M B it
BB AMESE) - WER Al Fi AR B
RIBELEFRIBEE - RERKRETERRRK
o AR o BEE BT R EARE o

1% 2R
BHE_Z—X"F=ZA=+—HLFEZ
BRERBFDEARA#ERIEE AR
1l AN 52 B %5 1) 493,766,000 T (= F — H
17,789,000 ) RERNB EHITERR
2 NFE S £584200,000,0000% (=T —F4F -
200,000,0008%) 5+ & -

HRAARRBE -_ZT-—RER-F
—REF=A=t—HULEFEIEEMFMEA
BEBEZEZCRITEAR  BE8K
BERNESRERRFER -

Ji B,

Interim dividend paid of HK cents 0.5 2k EIRR BT AR
(2015: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share 058 M(=Z&—
0.5%4)
Proposed final dividend of HK cents 0.5 R AR BIRR B AR
(2015: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share 0.581(=F—
0.5

2016 2015
—E-A"F —ThOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT
1,000

1,000

2,000
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11 Dividends (continued) 11 kB @)
At a meeting held on 24th June 2015, the directors of the Company RIE—RAFAAAZTHNERITZEH
proposed a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary share in L AREEFERRNEE=Z—H
respect of the year ended 31st March 2015. FZA=ZtT—HIEFEZRBARESR
AR 578 o
At a meeting held on 23rd June 2016, the directors of the Company RZE—RERNAZT=BR1T2E u%
proposed a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary share in P ARREFRRERNBE=Z
respect of the year ended 31st March 2016. This proposed final FZRA=T—HILEFEZRHARKRE tHx
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial L MAR0.5PE (L o It IEH IR A9 R HARR BT
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained SANEMBREINIEEMKRE e
profits for the year ended 31st March 2016. NWAEBE_ZT—"F=A=T—HB1LHF
B2 BT m AR o
12 Employee Benefit Expense 12 & B #E A pH X
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e Iﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁﬂ 60,910 60,944
Pension costs — defined contribution plans IRRE KA — EREHE R
P&l 3,580 3,587
Provision for long-service payments RERG B 1E 486 97
Total employee benefit expense EERNAXERE
(including directors’ remuneration) (BIEESERS) 64,628

BREKEERAT - —2—

Pensions — defined contribution plans
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the

Bk — ALK
AEBERETBERERERHFZEBHIE

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The AFELtE([RiEStE ) - RS
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an HETEREMREE BB EEAT
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group o BiERESHE AEERERES

and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The employer's and
employees’ contribution is subject to a cap of monthly earnings of
HK$30,000 (2015: HK$30,000).

NEFH

BSEREBBA(ERRRFIELES
FTEIEG])5% T A Mzt Bl gtk - B E
kEBHZK S A UA _ER 530,000 7T
(ZZ—F% :30,00087T) °
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12

98

Employee Benefit Expense (continued)
Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 95% owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme
at 13% and 11%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments
or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation
payable to the retired employees.

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
17% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. Contributions
are based on certain percentage of the applicable salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and have no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employees monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group's contributions are expensed as incurred.

12

1 B & A b 3% 2
MK 4 — e Ak ErE(2)

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. ( 7% £
EEER%ERZHMBAR)EAER
ALHEERHLHEEAESFE(TA
BeFrEll) - RESE T T EERG
E BASRARBNER - BREAES
E EEREEAZRESRA(ERR
— NN —FREERERES) Z13% %1%
T AT B o BRSNS - K&
30 4% (o] 5 B B PR R R & 3 SR IR
BREMNZE—FLEM - FHEBUTHEZA
BEMRKEEZNERS °

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. ( 4% &
TEMBRAT)ERMNEEE SR
FRABEFE(TRRABESFTE]) -
FRABSHE D EEEREE - B
MEBNERE - BREBERRAESFE -
EEXREEESAZREERA(EERSF
RANFERIE) Z217% % 20% 5 A Mz 84
Koo BRUEFRBASN - AE BN EAE A H
ERRRENRIGRINERN 2 —F
Eff - EERNHEABEATERRKES
SRR SE -

REBETBERRROIFAETR  AEE
B A R B R B 2K & B R K ET I R
ZHRTDBEHEEHNBRFEE
RERERGE - HFBERPEAM
BREBRFETANLTE -BKEF
HHIN  AEREY EETABRERENK
ENKIBRARREBEHNZ2E—FEE - H
REPRKGEIABERRKEER
BKE -

E
2%

REBEFERBE S TRARSIEG - A%
BEREsEREEZBAARKSESEL
TORZERBET R TE6% 2R - K
EEZHRTIREARL S -
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 # 3 RiTE AR £

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the BHEZZ—XRF=-A=1+—RH1LEFE "
year ended 31st March 2016 is set out below: FESFERITHAH 2 MeHIIOT :

Salaries,  Employer’s
allowances contributions
and other to defined
benefits contribution
Name of director EENR Fees in kind scheme Total

FE R BEHEHMR
REMEY FEELHZ
ik B/A  EEHE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET

Executive directors HITES

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure AR EE LT
(chairman) (£8E)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEEL L
(chief executive officer) (7TB#E)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEELE

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix 1BEREE

Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Manuel Arnaldo de
Moutinho (Note) Sousa Moutinho

54 (B3E)

Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors

Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman%t &

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REHELT

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKRESE

BREIEEERAT - —B— NEEH 99
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O RAT B & 2)

13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13

100

(continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31st March 2015 is set out below:

HE_Z-—HF=A=+—HILFESR
EENTBHR S E#SIT

Salaries, Employer's
allowances  contributions
and other to defined
benefits contribution
Name of director EEML Fees in kind scheme Total
e 2B REBEHR
REMEY FEELZ
ok &aH EEHR BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FHET
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HalEiE+
(chairman) (X)) - 600 18 618
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEEzt
(chief executive officer) (TTB#E %) - 1,200 18 1,218
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEZ S - 780 18 798
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix GERRE A - 780 18 798
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Manuel Arnaldo de
Moutinho (Note) Sousa Moutinho
e (PEE) - 971 - 971
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman4t 4 80 - - 80
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFET 120 - - 120
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HXKFELE 80 - - 80
280 4,331 72 4,683
Note: MIsE -

Resigned on 1st April 2016.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2015: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the
Group or compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any
director during the year (2015: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include five (2015: five) executive directors
whose emoluments are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2015: Nil).

MNZZE—RFHA—HEHE

FA - MEEEREXFRERECANS
(ZZ—0F: &) - FA HESHHE
NTPEMESIR - EREMAXKER
2RI E( S —HF E) -

ST 35T U N n
FAAEERERRFALERELS
(ZE—0%: AR)ATEF KFZ
& BN B IR MI I3

FA - WER LA TS EIERR
Sl FE AR AR S E 2 22E) sk
ERHBME( T —1F |-
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment 14 W3k -~ Bm Kt
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
properties and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEYE GRARERE BOERE RE i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FAET FHT FAT
At 1st April 2014 R-Z-—MEWMA—H
Cost or valuation BB E 19,647 15,404 20,065 2,538 57,654
Accumulated depreciation e - (12,981) (16,674) (1,648) (31,303)
Net book amount BREVFE 19,647 2,423 3,391 890 26,351

Year ended 31st March 2015 HZE-ZT—HF

ZA=t—HLHFE
Opening net book amount FEYEREFE 19,647 2,423 3,391 890 26,351
Exchange differences JE =58 (1,210) (7) (60) (24) (1,301)
Additions NE - 8,336 1,027 527 9,890
Surplus on revaluation BHAR 330 - - - 330
Disposals HeE (7.134) - (38) (22) (7,194)
Depreciation e (291) (4,146) (685) (281) (5,403)
Closing net book amount FAEEEFE 11,342 6,606 3,635 1,090 22,673
At 31st March 2015 R=ZZ—-HF=A

Er=[F
Cost or valuation BRANME G E 11,342 23,148 20,289 2,946 57,725
Accumulated depreciation 2T E = (16,542) (16,654) (1,856) (35,052)
Net book amount BREFE 11,342 6,606 3,635 1,090 22,673
Year ended 31st March 2016 HZE=-ZT—XF

=A=t+—HLHFE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 11,342 6,606 3,635 1,090 22,673
Exchange differences [ 5 =58 176 (21) (93) (45) 17
Additions NE - 5,097 665 343 6,105
Deficit on revaluation EHER (357) = = = (357)
Disposals HE = (16) (57) (1 (74)
Depreciation e (214) (6,191) (626) (391) (7,422)
Closing net book amount FRERERE 10,947 5475 3,524 996 20,942
At 31st March 2016 RoB—XRE

=A=+—H
Cost or valuation BRANMERAEE 10,947 28,013 20,154 2,755 61,869
Accumulated depreciation 2T E - (22,538) (16,630) (1,759) (40,927)
Net book amount BRTEDFE 10,947 5475 3,524 996 20,942
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment (continved) 14 13 ~ W5 KLkt =)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2016 and 2015 LTHBEER-_T—R"ER-ZT—HF=
of the above assets is as follows: A=F+—HZHAEREEI AT
2016 —EBE—REF

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor

properties  and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total

HENE HGARRE BAZERE RE CH)

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

At cost KAE - 28,013 20,154 50,922
At valuation HE 10,947 - - 10,947
10,947 28,013 20,154 61,869
2015 —ZT—hF
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
properties  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HENE HGARKE BATRE "E &t

HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TR

At cost DNl - 23,148 20,289 2,946 46,383
At valuation hiE 11,342 - - - 11,342
11,342 23,148 20,289 2,946 57,125

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held HEMEMR BB RINCIZR BB L F
under a long-term lease. =)
At 31st March 2016, had the leasehold properties of the Group RZZE—RNF=ZA=+—H ' MAEHE
been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, the ZHEMETIRE LKA REHIT &S
carrying values would have been approximately HK$5,200,000 8k - RIBRTE(E 1% & % 495,200,000/ T (=
(2015: HK$5,414,000). T —FHF : 5,414,000 7T) °
At 31st March 2016, leasehold properties with an aggregate RZEBE—XNF=ZA=+—H ' E@EF
net book amount of approximately HK$10,947,000 (2015: B4R 10947008 T (= —HF :
HK$11,342,000) have been pledged to secure certain banking 11,342,000 70 ) 2 FHE M E B 1EHE#H -
facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary amounting to ER—RHRITET —HEWE QA AL
approximately HK$3,855,000 (2015; HK$3,794,000) (Note 22). 3,855,0005% 7T ( = T — A 4F : 3,794,0005%

TO)ZETRITRE 2 B & (FifaE22) -
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14

(a)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The fair value of the Group's leasehold properties at 31st March
2016 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a member of
Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its leasehold
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each leasehold property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group’s annual report date.

At each financial year end the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(i) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

ERAEEERAR - —F—"FEH

14

(a)

W3k ~ W bs Kt i)
AEBEHENMER_-_FT-—RF=H
=+ —HZAFEDRBREREERY &
REZBYAEREXGEMNZBE
T2 EEMEE o B4 B0 i
AEMRAEEMPESE  EEBLE
FEMEMAETHABEE ERMIH
K- FRAGENR2ERBMERR
B2 M5 RERED -

AEE R ENSI BBEZ FMHNKIE
MECBREZHERRIFESFRZIEA
HEH -

FRNF—HK FoARE=HRZEL
R -

il {5 1

G EER

AEERIBF-AREBENESK
BIUfhE RAFE  FRMGERBL
BEXMHEMTET RIBERSHEE
HH EFeENMRSHZEHENE
ANFEZFHE  ETEFEROZBL
fiE - EEMBHRSE B NEHBLMA
ERETZHE EFRGEEMRIE
F-RAEAAKEFHRAHTRMGEER
SSEE

REEMRFER - EFF :

(i) REBVGERSTNAEEX
B AE

i) EPETE SR ER

(i) BB {AEMETE o
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment (continved) 14 3% ~ W)m Kk i (2)

Valuation basis (continued) i fE HE 4 (42)
(b)  Valuation techniques (b))  HEFE
The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group held for own R-ZE—RE=F=+—8  ~&E=EH#
use as at 31st March 2016 are classified as Level 2 valuations. EERZHEEMXE L AN FEESERSE
ZRIEHE -
The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is determined BEBRZHEEMFE 2 AFEDERAT
using market comparison approach by reference to recent sales SBHEE - WRSE0HERYETH
price and rental of comparable properties on a price per square ZHE B LMEE(AA ARG 2%
feet basis using market data which is publicly available. HRIRGE T REBHEMBIEET °
15. Intangible Assets 15. B &EE
Distribution
Goodwill rights Total
[k D &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THL TR
At 31st March 2015, 1st April 2015 and RZB-RF=A=1+—H"
31st March 2016 —Z-IFMEA-BR
—E-RF=ZA=1—H
Cost [DNE] 132 4,836 5,568
Accumulated amortization and impairment  2EHEEHH KR(E (732) (4.836) (5,568
Net book amount RESE - - _
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16 Subsidiaries 16 FfE AW
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2016, all of which are RZEBE—RNF=A=+—H [EAF

BREKEERAT - —2—

held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI) Limited

(& T Mobicon (BVI) Limited N2 &) B B 3%

which is held directly by the Company), are as follows: BN FTBEWEB AR HARRRMERF
B)FBOT
Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued Proportion of
incorporation and and place of share capital/ ownership interest
Name kind of legal entity operations registered capital held by the Group
HMALBER IEXBR BRIRE/ rREFERAR
8 EEERER EEBY EMERFE BEAD
2016 2015
ZE-NE  ZE-RF
A Plus Computer Holdings British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$800,000 100%
Limited labilty company REBETRERR L3R IR800,000E T
ZBRAHE  ARAT
APlus 2 Computer Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading and distribution of computer ~ Ordinary HK$1,000 51%
REFERERAR liability company products and mobile accessories  EHEIR1 00075
&% BRAA in Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FREHEERDH
APower Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading and distribution of computer  Ordinary HK$500,000 100%
EBTTIRERAH liability company products and mobile accessories  E4BR500,000% T
&% BRAA in Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FREHEERDH
APower Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading and distribution of computer  Ordinary HK$500,000 60%
REIREBERAH liability company products and mobile accessories 3 AR500,000% 7T
&% BRAA in Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FREHEERDH
AP Electronics (Proprietary) Republic of South Africa, limited ~ Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary South African 51%
Limited liability company parts, components and Rand ("ZAR") 100
MHEANE  ARAT equipment in South Africa LBRI00m IR
REFETETRL  h
REEEEEAH
AESI (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Provision of information technology ~ Ordinary HK$1,000 100%
K—Z5(FE) liability company services in Hong Kong L&, 00087
ARAT &4 BRAR REBREEANRRS

NEFH
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16 Subsidiaries (continued) 16 MHBAT (2
Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued Proportion of
incorporation and and place of share capital/ ownership interest
Name kind of legal entity operations registered capital held by the Group
AMALBER IERBR BRIRE/ AR ERR
£ EEERER EEBY EERGE READL
2016 2015
ZE-NE CE-RE
Langa Holdings (Proprietary] ~ Republic of South Africa, limited  Investment holding Ordinary ZAR 100 51%
Limited liability company in South Africa LRRI0EHDE
BFANE  FRAT REFRETRERR
Mantech Electronics Republic of South Africa, limited  Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary ZAR 100 51%
(Proprietary) Limited liability company parts, components and LRRI00EEE
FFELANE - BRAR equipment in South Africa
REFETETEN  ThR
BEEEENH
Maxfair Distribution Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Trading and distribution of computer  Ordinary HK$100, non- 100%
EERERAA liability company products and mobile accessories voting deferred shares
75 BRAFE in Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 (Note (i)
RERETERERR LBIRI00ETT
FREHEERDH ERFEELR
1,000,0007 7¢ (P £5(3)
MCU Power Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100%
REHERAT liabilty company parts, components and L3M1,000,000% T
&% BRAA equipment in Hong Kong
REBETETEN  ThE
BEEEANH
Milliard Devices Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary HK$1,000,000 0%
FERTHER AT liabilty company parts, components and EAR1.000,000/ 7T
EA BRAT equipment in Hong Kong
REBETETEN  ThE
BEEEANH
Mobicon (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$10,000 100%
liability company RERETRERR LRAR10,000%TT
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16 Subsidiaries (continued) 16 B
Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued Proportion of
incorporation and and place of share capital/ ownership interest
Name kind of legal entity operations registered capital held by the Group
AR IBER IEXBR BRIRE/ AR ERR
£ EERRER EEHY EMERFE REEAM
2016 2015
ZE-nE  —E-RF
Mobicon (Taiwan) Limited Republic of China, limited Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary New Taiwan 100%
BEBERNRY liability company parts, components and dolfar 5,000,000
BRAT RERE  ERAH equipment n Taiwan L EIR5,0000005 4 %
RABETEFRE  THR
BEEEANH
Mobicon Agent Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$10,000 100%
ERDRBERA liability company parts, components and 310,000 7T
&% BRAR equipment in Hong Kong
REBETEFRE  THR
BEEEANH
Mobicon Electronic Trading PRC, wholly-owned Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Registered capital 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited foreign enterprise parts, components and HK$2,000,000
(Note i hE - IEEELE equipment in the PRC A £2,000000% 7
EREETES RABETEFRE  THR
(RN ERAR BEEEANH
(R %)
Mobicon Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$10 100%
ERDETERE liability company parts, components and EERI0ET
ARAR &% BRAR equipment in Hong Kong
REBENEFRE  THR
BEETANH
Mobicon International Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100%
liabilty company RERETRERR EERI00ET
RERNES ARAT
Mobicon Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USS1 100%
liability company REBETRERR e

RERAES  BRAT

BERAEEERLR - —B—AFFR
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16 Subsidiaries (continued) 16 B
Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued Proportion of
incorporation and and place of share capital/ ownership interest
Name kind of legal entity operations registered capital held by the Group
AR L BHR IERBR BRTRE/ AR EAR
£ EERRER EEBY EMERFE REEAM
2016 2015
ZE-NE ZE-RF
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$1,000 51%
Limited lability company REBETREER LBk 000ET
ZERNES  ARAT
Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Republic of Singapore, limited  Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary Singaporean 100%
Pte Ltd. liability company parts, components and dollar 300,000
MMERAE - ARAF equipment in Singapore E3RIR300,0008T MR T
REMEETE TR ThE
BEEEANH
Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Malaysia, limited Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary Malaysian 95%
Sdn. Bhd. liability company parts, components and Ringgit 1,000,000
SRAESD - BRAA equipment in Malaysia L338%1,000,000
RERBZEOETEN 1 BRAGAER
RESBEEEDH
Mobicon-Remote Electronics ~ Thailand, limited Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary Thai Baht 3,000,000 99.99%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. liability company parts, components and 8 R3.000,0005% 5%
ZB - BRAA equipment in Thailand
RREETETRE  THR
BEREERNH
Partners 2 Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100%
liability company REBEMRELER ERRI00ET
ZERNES  ARAT
Suntronika (Propristary) Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary ZAR 100 51%
Limited limited liability company parts, components and ERRI0E RS
BELNE - BRAR equipment in South Africa
REFETETENR  THR
BREEENH
Videocom Technology Hong Kong, limited liability Retailing of cosmetic products Ordinary HK$2 100%
(HK) Limited company in Hong Kong LaRIET
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16

BREKEERAT - —2—

Subsidiaries (continued) 16 MHBATE (2

Notes: PREE -

(i) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. The shares (i) BN ERERER DY IERANEEHEE © EZ
have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividend, and are not entitled to ﬁﬁ%’u‘lﬁ&iﬁé IMEREZHARE
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10 billion had been %%%ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ'@maﬁm
distributed to the holders of ordinary shares. 10,000,000,00078 7T T L @AE B A BIBRSN ©

(ii) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December (i) REBEHETHRT - ZHEB R R 2B
in accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not FEAEZEBRT_A=+—8 #EXE
coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the B — c NEBZEGREMBRET
Group were prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary BEZMBARNEBEEZE_T—X~F=A
for the twelve months ended 31st March 2016. =+—HIE T @Az BHRERER -

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time EWBARARBE_ZE—XF=A

during the year ended 31st March 2016 (2015: Nil). =t—HLEE WETTE? L EEA D

BIIZBEERNCZEZ—HF  E) -

Material non-controlling interest BEARFERER

The total non-controlling interest for the year is approximately AR 7 FFE R M 25 AR RR /5 4718,124,000

HK$18,124,000, of which HK$20,254,000 is for Mobicon-Mantech A IT » H 120,254,007 T &7 & 7 Mobicon-

Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Mobicon-Mantech Group”). Mantech Holdings Limited & H K & 2 7]

The non-controlling interest in respect of the other subsidiary is not (I'Mobicon-Mantech££ [ |) o E b} & 2 7]

material. ZIEERR RN T ER o

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with ABEAHZREZ ZHELRFAZHE

material non-controlling interest EHHE

Set out below are the summarized financial information for the AT &kl i 8 22 "] Mobicon-Mantech Group.Z

subsidiary, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has a non-controlling BA 75 & RHEEZE © Mobicon-Mantech GroupE 7

interest that is material to the Group. HAKEN S BEAZ MR -

Summarized statement of financial position BRI R E

2016 2015
—REF —ZE—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH T FHT

Current B
Assets BE 51,665 49,030
Liabilities ats (11,070) (15,557)
Total current net assets TENVE EFERET 40,595 33,473

NEFH
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16 Subsidiaries (continued) 16 FBAF )
Material non-controlling interest (continued) BAFERER(E)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with BEEEXHEZERERZHBLTZHE
material non-controlling interest (continued) BREE(E)
Summarized statement of financial position (continued) Bk R E (&)
2016 2015
= Skl i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Non-current FERED
Assets BE 774
Liabilities as -
Total non-current net assets ERBE EFEET 739 774
Net assets EEZFE 41,334 34,247
Summarized statement of comprehensive income PEWmRFE
2016 2015
—E—XF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue Wz 82,124 83,796
Profit before income tax TR AT 20,637 17,004
Income tax expense FTERiR X (5,506) (5,977)
Profit for the year F R 15,131 11,027
Other comprehensive expense Hib 2 ERS (8,044) (4,681)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWALLZE 1,087 6,346
Total comprehensive income allocated to BT IR ER 2
non-controlling interests 2ERABE 3,110
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ER T IR R 2 R E 2,719
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16 Subsidiaries (continued) 16 MHBATE (2
Material non-controlling interest (continued) BARFERERE)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with EEEAXFEZEREZZHBLTZHE
material non-controlling interest (continued) BREE(E)
Summarized statement of cash flows HEmEXRHE
2016 2015
—B-RF —FAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBELECRERE
Cash generated from operations CEEACES 1,954 12,910
Overseas income tax paid BB ST (5,681) (4,769)
Net cash generated from operating activities — K& EKELE 2R & /55 2,273 8,141
Net cash used in investing activities KRR ESHE A RS FE (93) (139)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing MEFESEL(BR)Z
activities e TR 2,814 (2,805)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BR&RBESEEYIEMNFHE 4,994 5197
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the F¥2R4& KIBEZEED
year 5,306 4,687
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEREE) s & (6,618) (4,578)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ FRZHE RIS ZEY 3,682 5,306

EAE R RR ML B AR FfE S A
ZEH e

The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.
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16 Subsidiaries (continued)

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On 1st September 2014, the Group acquired an additional 5%
of equity interests in Mobicon — Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd.
for a purchase consideration of approximately MYR 194,000
(equivalent to HK$496,000). The carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests in Mobicon — Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd.
on the date of acquisition was approximately HK$1,103,000.
The Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$552,000 and an increase in equity attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$56,000. The
effect of changes in the ownership interest of Mobicon — Remote
Electronic Sdn. Bhd. on the equity attributable to owners of the
Company during the year is summarized as follows:

16

Rt I 2 ] 22)

W S — ] R} )8 2 i) 4 A1 HE £
R-ZZE—MFLA—H AEBKE
Mobicon — Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. % £h
5% AR A#E s - BB E (B R 194,000 55 2K
FA SR MR R (A8 70496,00078 7T ) © UK
B H 59 © 5 Mobicon — Remote Electronic
Sdn. Bhd. Z JF#ER EH 2 REELH A
1,103,000 7T © 7 %k [ #E 58 FF 12 A =1
> #9552,0008 T R AR B HEA AFEAS
#E 2 12 1 4956,00075 7T ° Mobicon — Remote
Electronic Sdn. Bhd. #E 4 # # = % &) ] F
ARRBIHEE AEEER 2 2R
T~

Carrying amount of non-controlling
interests acquired
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests

fREE

W PSS SF IR s 2

EffFEE s 2 K (E

Excess over consideration paid recognized
within equity

HERSERBECDNRE

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHT
552

(496)

56
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17 Interests in Associates 17 RBEARZ RS
(a) Interests in associates (a) ABFEARZHER
2016 2015
—R"E —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAExT
Beginning of the year =) 17
Exchange differences 5 =R -
Share of (loss)/profit e (E518) %A 22
End of the year Fi8 39

Details of the associates of the Group as at 31st March 2016,
which are unlisted, are as follows:

=L

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
TR ER
EEERER

Principal

activities and
place of operations
TERBR
LEMM

AEER-_Z-—RE=A=+—RH23¥
ERBERRFBNT

Particulars of

Create Tech Software

Systems Limited
(“Create Tech”)

MEIME AR

(Eii-li=2))

Mobicon Electronic

Supplies Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B8 ARRA

Thailand, limited
liability company
ZE - BRA

Design of computer
software in
Hong Kong

REBETER
B

Trading and distribution
of electronic parts,
components and
equipment in Thailand

REREETET
2 TR
BEEEEDH

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests
in the associates.

BREKEERAT - —2—

NEFH

issued Proportion of
shares held ownership interest
FisE 81T BRE
R R BEADL
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-IF
Ordinary HK$150,000 30%
150,000
BT
Ordinary Thai Baht 49%
2,450,000
48 0%2,450,000

VEEAEBNBERRER AR
RAE-
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17 Interests in Associates (continued) 17 RBEARZHER®)
(a) Interests in associates (continued) (a) RBBEARZHER(E)
Summarized financial information for an associate BE Nz BEEREE
Aggregate information of an associate that are not individually TEBEXZBERNFZELEEN
material
2016 2015
= Skl i
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
The Group's share of (loss)/profit REE R (EI1R), T 22
The Group's share of other REEELEMEER
comprehensive expense -
The Group's share of total comprehensive AEBEGEE
(expense)/income (FX), WA 458 22
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEBRBE NG 22
interests in associates BRE A 39
Unrecognized share of loss of an associate R IEFRIENT — [ & 2 Bl 1
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
The unrecognized share of loss of FRARBREN —HEED
an associate for the year Gl ¢! -
Cumulative share of loss of an associate 25— e A REE -
(b) Amount due to an associate (b)  FEAT— R E A E sk E
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and BN —HBEARRBAEER 28
repayable within one year. BAR—FREE -
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18 Inventories

18

ZERSs

2016
—E-RF
HK$°000
TR

Electronic parts, components and equipment

BEFEM - T RiEes

149,260
12,056

31,447

192,763

Computer products and mobile accessories BB e F R
Cosmetic products {bigm
19 Trade Receivables 19

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for
sales of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts,

presented based on due dates.

JE WAL B 5 W ik

2015
—ZET—hF
HK$'000
FAT

165,420
15,374
31,105

211,899

AEE-RETERFPZEEREEHRHT
BEWATE - REMBHEZ7 2RI
B X (EMRRERE) RO

™

2016
ZE-RF
HK$°000
TR

0 to 60 days

61 to 120 days
121 to 180 days
181 to 365 days

T E60H

61=120H
1212180H
1812365 H

56,863
859
187
M

58,050

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as

security in respect of its trade receivables.

BERAEEERLR - —B—AFFR

2015
—T—REF
HK$°000
FET

57,458
1,673
983
112

60,126

RBEEHMMARZESEERRAE
WE SRR AT E HRAEERP
BERZ  WEWEZERFTEALESE
TEERR - AREYELEELES
RAFEEAERRERER -

115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B R M

19 Trade Receivables (continued) 19 B SER e
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are REEZEKESERREAENLTIE
denominated in the following currencies: #EIE -
2016 2015
—EB-REF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Hong Kong dollar BT 30,555 31,209
usSh EVi 13,332 15,462
Singaporean dollar ot 661 284
Renminbi ARHE 2,476 988
Malaysian Ringgit R MER 957 887
New Taiwan dollar ek 303 336
South African Rand EEGE= 9,766 10,960
58,050 60,126
As at 31st March 2016, trade receivables of approximately RZZT—A"F=A=+—H ' 426,542,000
HK$26,542,000 (2015: HK$20,843,000) were past due but not BT (ZE— R ¢ 20,843,000/ 7T ) 2 FEUR
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for ESRNERRETERE ZFEKE
whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of ) AR AR BT BR N M R B TSR N S B 1B
these trade receivables is as follows: UEFPEH - 2ERIE SRR KERD
T -
2016 2015
—EB-XRF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Up to 60 days L H60H 25,355 18,175
61 to 120 days 6121201 859 1,573
121 to 180 days 121£2180H 187 983
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 141 112
26,542 20,843
As at 31st March 2016 and 2015, none of trade receivables has R-EBE—RFEFR_ZET—RHF=A=1+—
been assigned to a bank with recourse as collateral under factoring H  WEEKESEREBERN L
arrangement (Note 22). EETIRITERERG  WHAEEBRE

(Pf&E22) »
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19 Trade Receivables (continued) 19 B S %R
As at 31st March 2016, trade receivables of approximately R-ZZE—RNF=ZA=+—H EBKES
HK$611,000 (2015: HK$2,025,000) were impaired. The amount of BR 7 #9611,0008 70 ( — = — R4 2,025,000
the provision was approximately HK$831,000 as at 31st March BIL)BRE RZZE—AR"F=A=+—
2016 (2015: HK$632,000). The individually impaired receivables ArRELELNAESN00EBT(ZE—H
mainly relate to a few customers, which are in unexpected difficult F : 632,0008 7T) ° fERIE HEREZ &
economic situations. The average age of these receivables is over WBR SR B8 K ) 80 $ 8 A TR R BT I
180 days (2015: over 180 days). RN EP - BARBKERZ FHERR

B180A M (= —HF : 180BLAL) °

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables EWE SRR ERE 2 ZBOT -
are as follows:

2016 2015

—B-rF —T0F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T FAT

At beginning of the year F9) 879
Receivables written off as uncollectible s E] Uk B > FE U E e (2,197)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables  FEURE 5 BR TR (B 4 2,025
Exchange differences FE 5, 258 (75)
At end of the year F4R 632
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20 Cash and Bank Balances 20 BERBITHERR
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Cash at bank and in hand RITNRFHERS

-!!I!I 45,235
AEE 2R MIRTTHEHE1E479,032,000
BIT(ZZ—FHF 6,890,000 L) AAR
EEDIMERFHR R E A2 588 - K]
ZEANREERRIINERLZSTERE
AR B Rt - B S R B AT A8 A A9 SNEE
B IR R RIEARFTARR o

Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount
of approximately HK$9,032,000 (2015: HK$6,890,000) was
denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following e RIRITAERAT I EEESIE -

currencies:
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—F1E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Hong Kong dollar BT 15,720
usD e 12,844
Singapore dollar ot 667
Renminbi AREE 6,890
Malaysian Ringgit BRADMER 2,429
New Taiwan dollar e 1,101
South Africa Rand EESE kS 5,306
Others Hi 278
45,235
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21 Trade Payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

based on due dates.

0 to 60 days

61 to 120 days
121 to 180 days
181 to 365 days

21 M ZEX
REMAHERI Y ENESERER
DT

TE60H 30,000
61=120H 211
121£180H 1119
1812365H 296

31,692

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
usSD

Singapore dollar
Renminbi
Malaysian Ringgit
New Taiwan dollar
South Africa Rand
Others

®oE

BT 12,631

e 14,262
¥hns T 406
AR 389
5 R PE S M 361
ek 13
EZEE kS 3,593

Hity 31

BREAKEERAE - —B—RFFH

57,358

AEBERNESEFEREEBELTIE
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22 Short-Term Bank Loans 22 HHIRITER
All short-term bank loans are due within one year and denominated FIERHRTEFER —FRE RN
in the following currencies: THEESIE
2016 2015
—E—XRE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Hong Kong dollar BT 96,973 89,234
usSh =5 2,709 2,666
Singapore dollar ot 1,146 1,128
100,828 93,028
The effective interest rates of the short-term bank loans at the REEBE - SHRITER BRI %
reporting date range from approximately 2.23 % to 3.23 % (2015: NF#2.23%E323%(ZF—HGF : 2.24%
2.24% t0 2.82%). £2.82%) °
The Group’s banking facilities are secured by the leasehold REEZRITMENREE ZHEME
properties of the Group (Note 14). (BEE14) YEEE AR ©
23  Share Capital 23 AR
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Authorized: SEE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares FRREEC0ETT 2 E Ak
of HK$0.10 each 2,000,000,000% 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE
200,000,000 ordinary shares FRREECN0E T 2 Tk
of HK$0.10 each 200,000,000% 20,000 20,000
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24 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 24

Cash Flows

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash

generated from/(used in) operations:

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

— Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

— Interest income

— Interest expense

— Share of loss/(profit) of an associate

— Provision for impairment of trade receivables

— Loss on disposals of subsidiaries

Changes in working capital:

— Inventories

— Trade receivables

— Other receivables and deposits
— Trade payables

— Other payables and accruals

RIZBREFEHR
2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FET
BRI S TR AT A
IATIER Z %

W% BERERGITE

—HEME  BEERE
S d e

— FE WA

—FBERX

— e — R N RIEE
Caa )

—RWE SRR ERE

—HEMBRARZER

BEALED

~17%

— R P

— E R R

— R B

—E R R B

Net cash generated from/(used in) operations

mBEBES (B 2R
38 11,625

BERAEEERLR - —B—AFFR

i B B < v o R W R

BRASHATENBEEEBELE (B

2015

—E R
HK$'000
FHT

17,940

5,403

(628)
(186)
1,922

(22)

(30,767)
1,477
(3,503)
10,907
(11,977

(9,434)
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25 Commitments 25 R
Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the lessee REMA ARG — AR E R R RMAN
As at 31st March 2016, the Group had future aggregate minimum RZE—R"E=RA=+—8 ~X&EH
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect HEMFEZ PARIELEEHON BIEE
of rented premises as follows: NREBENR@ENT
2016 2015
—E-AF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
No later than one year —F R 34,372 36,769
Later than one year and no later than —FRERAFA
five years 18,492 37,619
52,864 74,388
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KERNFEEASERETTER
for certain of its retail outlets, office and warehouses. Leases HoMAEREEREMNZEE - BHOZ
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from 1 to 3 EEIEBR —FE=FT% - HanH
years. HANMERETE -
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26 Related Party Transactions 26 BBALRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the B Ut 0 B3Rk E (b 30 ) AT BB & 41
Group had the following significant related party transactions REERFRNEUTERFEBMALRS
during the year:

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and  (a) AEEEBEBRALTETZIEARSFE
related parties are summarized below: B
2016 2015
ZB-AF —T-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
WizE TAERT FiET

Management fee received from an BB —EEERARCERE (i)

associate 156
Maintenance fee paid to an associate EX—HBE AR HEE (i) 710
Rentals paid/payable to M-Bar Limited B3 1,/ S M-Bar Limited (i, (vii)

ik 3,924
Rentals paid/payable to UGD Property B %t/ X FUGD Property (iv),vii)
(Proprietary) Limited (“"UGD Property”) (Proprietary) Limited
(TUGD Property ) 2 4 980
Rentals paid/payable to Tiger Moth B %t/ FE % [ Tiger Moth (iv),lvii)

Trading No.53 (Proprietary) Limited Trading No.53 (Proprietary)

("Tiger Moth") Limited ([ Tiger Moth ) 2 % 268
Sales to PC Supply Limited and its HETEEMERRARE (v), {vii)

subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”) HERR(EEEER]) 1,773
Purchases from PC Supply Group NETREEBEE (v), (vii 1,670
Commission income received from Clover ~ ZUEEEREERAT 2 (vi)

Display Limited BEsA 44

BERAEEERLR - —B—AFFR
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26 Related Party Transactions (continued) 26 BN S 2
Notes: 5T

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Management fee was received from an associate, Create Tech Software
Systems Limited at a fixed monthly rate of HK$13,000 (2015: HK$13,000
per month) for use and lease of facilities of the Group.

Maintenance fee was paid to an associate, Create Tech Software Systems
Limited at a fixed rate of HK$53,550 per month for the year ended 31st
March 2016 (2015: HK$59,133 per month) for providing maintenance of the
accounting system.

M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic
Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited
were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

RE—MEE AR (FHEARKGEARA
Al) 2 EIRE Th ok A P AN S B AR e 1 UK
B EEEATA13008L(ZF—A
& : §H13,00087T) °

RBE-_ZT—AF=A=1+—8LHF
B BEXM—ABE AR GTaRg4s
RAR)ZHEEDRIRE S R ME
MmNz EEEBRS A535508 7T
(ZZ—R%F : §A591338T) °

M-Bar Limited B B RAIEFHBRAFZE
BWBAR - BRAIEFARQFBHAN
@7%%%1;%%/\ | 218 1+(30%)
HEUELZT(30%) ~ HLEE A (20%) K15
B A (20%) Bz A © BLM-Bar Limited
AN 2 MEMR TR NE T HE 2 1&
KRN ©

(iv) UGD Property and Tiger Moth are companies wholly-owned by Mr. (iv) UGD Property % Tiger Moth ¥3 /& Moutinho
Moutinho, a director of the Company and owns 49% interest in Mobicon- fE2EHEEB 2 AT - Moutinho B £ &
Mantech Holdings Limited. The lease agreements with UGD Property and KA @l % % - I % A Mobicon-Mantech
Tiger Moth were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting Holdings Limited 49%7#& % ° E2UGD Property
parties. K Tiger MothaT 32 2 FA E Wi THIR 5] 0%
T E ZAGFKETSL °
(v) PC Supply Limited is owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer (v) é WPERARDFBBEAEKERR
Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is RE([BABE ?‘n‘JEJ ) RIGEIERTHA
beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man 99.99% & 0.01% 4% - BB EMIEHA R
Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, T%?%Iiﬁﬁ%mwéﬁi@o% -5
Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company. Sales BUE L E(30%) ~ FLTEE K AE(20%) KI5 R
to and purchases from PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal RAEENNERER - HEBTHEEE
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties. TZHERKBR N —REKRBE
FRIRETRI R T 198 2 IR FETT »
(vi) Clover Display Limited is a subsidiary of A Plus which is beneficially owned (vi) BERRERARABBEMEZH B
by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. AR EREMEBARARESHKE
Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors Z R R = E L (30%)  HEEL LT
and substantial shareholders of the Company. Commission income (30%) Mt ZE 2 % A (20%) K 45 B AR 5L A&
received from Clover Display Limited was conducted in the normal course (20%) Bz A - BERAARA AU
of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties. B2 AEKRATIR — AR ERBIRFIRET
RE I 2 NEFETT ©
(vii) These transactions constituted continuing connected transactions as (vii) ZERXRGBK EMRAFMREZIFER
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26 Related Party Transactions (continued) 26 BN S =)
Notes: (continued) iz - ()

(b) Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2016 (b} R-ZE—RF=A=+—H8 ' KEEH

were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of approximately ftb [ U 3R IE B 48 B X 1 M-Bar Limited 2
HK$654,000 (2015: HK$654,000). HEESK65400FT(ZFE—HF

654,000/ 7T ) °

(c) Included in other payables and accruals of the Group were (¢ AEEBEMBEAZERESEHOIERE
amounts due to minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of 5% T B B8 2 &) A BUIR BR NI 493,304,000
approximately HK$3,304,000 (2015: HK$1,851,000). The amounts BT (ZE—AhF ¢ 1,851,000%7T) - B
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. RIBAEEIR .« B RAREREE -

(d) Included in other payables and accruals of the Group were  (d) AEBEMENRERESEABERE

amount due to a director of approximately HK$1,532,000 (2015: N—REE 2 FIAL1,532,00008 T(=ZF
HK$1,907,000). The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and — R4 :1,907,0007T) ° B ERIEREK
repayable on demand. A RERERERERER -
(e) Key management compensation (e) FEZEEA B RO
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—HRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short-term employee benefits EHIREET 4,331
Post-employment benefits B2 12 A 72
4,403
Further details of directors” emoluments are included in Note 13 to EEMe s —THRBRAREETBR
the consolidated financial statements. FITEE13 -
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27 Disposals of Subsidiaries 27 HEREA T

(a) Disposal of Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand) (a) i # Mobicon-Remote Electronics
Co., Ltd (Thailand) Co., Ltd
During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group disposed of its HE-_ZTZ—XF=ZA=+—H8L*F
entire equity interest in Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand) & + 7N & & 7£ Mobicon-Remote Electronics
Co., Ltd upon deregistration. (Thailand) Co., Ltd#iSEsE & - HEENZ

REZ Z AR o

Consideration received EWRAE
2016
—E—XEF
HK$'000
TR T
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents B EBEELRELSZEY) -
Loss on disposal of Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand) 4/ EMobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand)
Co., Ltd Co., Ltd 2 515
2016
—E—REF
HK$"000
FET
Consideration received EHRIE
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE
Cumulative exchange differences released BB R ELESE
Loss on disposal included in profit or loss for FARE_Z-RE=HA=+—H
the year ended 31st March 2016 IFFEBFZRZEEMESER
Net cash movement on disposal of Mobicon-Remote (& Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand)
Electronics (Thailand) Co., Ltd Co., Ltd 2 BB £ 5 B F5H
2016
—E—XREF
HK$'000
FExT
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BRREGRSEBESZEY)
Less: Cash and bank balances disposal of B BHEZRe RIRTTAERR
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27 Disposals of Subsidiaries (continued) 27 WMEMEAWE @)

(b) Disposal of Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited (b)  HiESuntronika (Proprietary) Limited
During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group disposed of HEZZ—XF=-A=1+—RHLEFE "
its entire equity interest in Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited upon K [B|7E Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited 8 $5
deregistration. e HEERZARZ 2ERARE

3o
Consideration received EWEE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BRRE(HSERSZEY)
Loss on disposal of Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited i & Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited 2 /&
5B

Consideration received BHRIE
Net assets disposed of BEHECZEEFE
Cumulative exchange differences released BEE RAELERE
Loss on disposal included in profit or loss for FABEZZ-RF=A=1+—H
the year ended 31st March 2016 IEFERRE 2 HEMSER
Net cash movement on disposal of Suntronika (Proprietary) 4 & Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited Z £
Limited SREFEE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BURRE(REMREEEY)
Less: Cash and bank balances disposal of B BERE 2R E RIRTTAER
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27 Disposals of Subsidiaries (continued) 27 WMEMEBAW @)

(¢) Disposal of A Power Limited (¢c)  Hif5A Power Limited
During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group disposed of its BHE-_ZT—XXF=-A=+—HLFE"
entire equity interest in A Power Limited upon deregistration. AEBEBFEFTTREGR A THEHEEM

& HEHEHRZARZZHRAEL -

Consideration received EWRE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BEWAREBIRG KIRSEEY)

Gain on disposal of A Power Limited HEZEEL TRERAAZKem

Consideration received BURE

Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE
Cumulative exchange differences released EERy BAEREE
Gain on disposal included in profit or loss for AABE—Z—ARF=A=1+—H
the year ended 31st March 2016 IEFEEmEEX s HEMERE
Net cash movement on disposal of A Power Limited HEFE+ TEERAGCHELEE)FEE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BURRERSMRESEEY)
Less: Cash and bank balances disposal of B BHEZH e RIRTTERS
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28 Statement of Financial Position and 28 A2 62 W #ik ¥ % & ik
Movement of Reserves of the Company S g
As at 31st March 2016 R_-F—ANE=ZHA=1—H
(a)  Statement of financial position of the Company (a)  AREZEIHEAMRE
2016 2015
e = it
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AT ZIRE 100,210 99,679
e 100,210 - 99679
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JE Ut — 1P B8 A R 3K I8 5,115 6,128
Cash and bank balances ] & RIRITHEER 83 8
5,198 6,136
Total assets EEH#E 105,408 105,815
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals A FE A FOE R ER B 24 24
24 24
Net current assets REBEEFEE 5174 6,112
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBERS 105,384 105,791
Net assets EEFE 105,384 105,791
Capital and reserves attributable to the AAREREE ABGEREK
equity holders of the Company R
Share capital A% A 20,000 20,000
Reserves G 85,384 85,791
Total equity FEZARE 105,384 105,791
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved KRB ZHBRRARERZZ—RNEN
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd June A-t=BEEFgi EREERE
2016 and signed on its behalf by: WHTNIEERKEFTGES
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
el B8E
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Director
*E BIEERITEARE
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28

(b)

130

Statement of Financial Position and 28

A oy W) 2 B 5 IR DL e B fakk i

Movement of Reserves of the Company SR (4%)
(continued)
As at 31st March 2016 (continued) R_E—NEZH=+—H#E)
Movement of reserves of the Company (b) KRB ZFEE
Company
NG|
Share  Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
B3 sE AR B A%
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FET TET
(Note)
(B¥3E)
Balance at 1st April 2014 RN-TE—O4F
MA—Bz&H% 16,706 67,097 1,213 85,016
Profit for the year F R T 2,775 2,775
Dividends i3S - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2015 R-E—RF
=B=+—H
JREER 16,706 67,097 1,988 85,791
Balance at 1st April 2015 RZZT—RF
WA—HZ &% 16,706 67,097 1,988 85,791
Profit for the year F R F 1,593 1,593
Dividends iz 8 - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2016 HNoE— £|E
=A=+-—
2SR 16,706 67,097 1,581 85,384
Representing: RE
2016 final dividend TENERERRE 1,000
Others Hib 581
1,581
Note: P 5E -

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the
ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries
acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took

place on 18th April 2001.

BABRBREARBAFHETEBRR 2EE - BRE
—EE-FNAFNAETZEARBRMD RS
MBABCEEFEZER -
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Financial Summary

AR

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the ~ ANEEBEAREMBFEE 2B AMEREREEHM

Group for the last five financial years is set out below: BEMMIT
Results B
Year ended 31st March
HE=A=1+—-HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

—®-Xf —T-IFf —FT-WF —F-=F —FT-=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TAL TAT

Revenue Wz 684,374 695,057 603,276 545,887 588,628
Profit before income tax BET SR AT 15,743 17,940 9,242 7,803 6,557
Income tax expense FrERiF Y (5,587) (6,159) (3,911) (2,667) (2,593)
Profit for the year FRHEF 10,156 11,781 5,331 5,136 3,964
Attributable to: A
Equity holders of the Company RNRERFEA 7,789 1,013 1,134 743
Non-controlling interests eI RS 3,992 4,318 4,002 3.221
11,781 5,331 5,136 3,964
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iUy
Assets and Liabilities & AfE
As at 31st March
R=A=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

—E-XF -“ZT-1F -T-MF —T-=F —F--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T&x TAL TET TET TR

Property, plant and equipment mE - BEKR 22,673 26,351 21,261 12,829
Intangible assets miAE - - - _
Interests in associates RIS N T2 RS 39 17 68 1,079
Current assets REEE 316,814 335,207 298,191 273,664 288,685
Total assets BEEH#E 337,756 357,919 324,559 294,993 302,593
Current liabilities mEEE (156,176) (176,054) (142,129) (112,688) (123,598)
Net current assets REBEEFE 160,638 159,153 156,062 160,976 165,087
Total assets less EEABERABER

current liabilities 181,580 181,865 182,430 182,305 178,995
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFREHaE - - (40) (48)
Net assets EEFRE 181,580 181,865 182,430 182,265 178,947
Capital and reserves attributable &2 G FH A

to the equity holders of the ELERRREE

Company
Share capital (e 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves B 143,456 145,973 144,897 146,263 142,655

163,456 165,973 164,897 166,263 162,655

Non-controlling interests FERES 18,124 15,892 17,533 16,002 16,292
Total equity A 181,580 181,865 182,430 182,265 178,947
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